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Gaming

Riding on the development

of the gaming industry

on Jeju Island, the Group’s
world-class casino caters

to foreign visitors with different
preferences and offers them

a new gaming experience.
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Property

The “Landing” brand adheres to its belief
of “Creating Home with Quality Life”,

and provides customers with the
ultimate experience of warmth

and coziness.
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WATER

Resorts &
Villas

The first world-class destination spa in Jeju
in “the Myth & History Park project”,
revitalizes you in a relaxing

environment.
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Entertainment
Complex

“The Myth & History Park”

is planned to have the largest casino

in Jeju, with more than 2000 hotel rooms,
the largest family theme park,

top MICE destination and the largest
themed-shopping paradise in South Korea.
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Investment &
Development

Spanning a site of

approximately 2.5 million square metres,
“the Myth & History Park” project

is one of the six core projects

in Jeju.
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“The Myth & History Park”, a world-class tourism
destination in Jeju celebrated the groundbreaking
ceremony in 12" February 2015. Mr. Won Hee-Ryong,
the Governor of Jeju Special Self-Governing Province,
together with approximately 500 guests attended

the ceremony held at the site at Seogwipo-si in Jeju.
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Corporate Information

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Suites 5801-5804, 58/F.

Two International Finance Centre
No. 8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT IN BERMUDA

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
IN HONG KONG

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
582

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY
http://www.582.com.hk
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Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr. Yang”), aged 43, is the Chairman and an Executive
Director of Landing International Development Limited (the “Company”)
since 19 July 2013. Mr. Yang is responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the board of directors of the Company. He is the sole shareholder
and the director of the Landing International Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also the founder and chairman of board
of directors of Anhui Landing Holding Group Co., Ltd* (Z## S4Ei £ E
A R 2~ 7)) (“Anhui Landing”), which is principally engaged in real estate
development business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He
had been a director of Hubei Landing Holding Co., Ltd. (shares of which are
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000971) (“Hubei
Landing”) until December 2014. Mr. Yang has over 11 years of experience
in property development in the PRC.

Mr. Ng Kwok Fai (“Mr. Ng”), aged 42, is the Deputy Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company since 22 April 2014. Mr. Ng has
extensive experience in the financial markets and investment banking
businesses and is mainly responsible for corporate management and
optimizing the capital structure of the companies. He is a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate member of
both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Ng had
been the chairman and executive director of Pacific Plywood Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 767)
until 16 July 2013. Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
China Information Technology Development Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8178).

Ms. Zhou Xueyun (“Ms. Zhou”), aged 58, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 9 August 2013. Ms. Zhou is currently the vice president of
Anhui Landing. She was a director of Hubei Landing from August 2012 to
August 2013 and a director of Landing Industrial (Hubei) Co., Ltd. from June
2012 to December 2014. Ms. Zhou served as the general manager of asset
operation of Anhui Tourism Group Co., Ltd. and the manager of Anxing
United Corporation of Zhuhai Special Economic Zone* (Fk/& 45 7 1 & %7 B
%4 #8/2 7)) during the period from 2002 to 2012.

Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu”), aged 35, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2 October 2013. She worked in Hainan Airlines from 1998 to 2001.
She was a director of Anhui Landing during the period from 2007 to 2012.
Ms. Xu is the spouse of Mr. Yang.

# The English translation of Chinese names or words, where indicated are included for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded on the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (“Mr. Fok”), aged 43, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Fok joined the Company since 11
June 2010. He had worked in the listing division of the Stock Exchange and
has over 17 years of experience in the field of corporate finance and, in
particular, in equity financing and financial restructuring. Mr. Fok is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia, and also a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Fok is currently an
executive director and Chief Financial Officer of Jian ePayment Systems
Limited (shares of which are listed on the growth enterprise market of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 8165) and an independent non-executive
director of China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Rising Development Holdings Limited) (shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1004).

Mr. Chen Lei (“Mr. Chen”), aged 36, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2 October 2013. Mr. Chen currently acts as
an advisor of Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited, before which he
has served as an executive director of Nomura International (Hong Kong)
Limited, and as analyst, associate and vice president of several investment
banks. He obtained a bachelor’s degree from the University of Western
Ontario.

Ms. Zhang Xiaolan (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 38, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2 October 2013. Ms. Zhang is
currently the general manager of Financial Market Department in Hua Xia
Bank, Hefei Branch and the Chief Risk Officer of SME Credit Department in
Hua Xia Bank, Hefei Division. From 2010 to 2012, she was the general
manager of Corporate Business Department in Hua Xia Bank, Hefei Branch.
Ms. Zhang was the branch president of Bank of China, Hefei, Anhui
Province Tongcheng Road Branch from 2006 to 2008 and a sales officer of
Corporate Business Department in Bank of China, Hefei, Anhui Province
Branch from 2009.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no other relationship between each of the
Director and senior management as required to be disclosed under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).
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| am pleased to present the business progress of Landing International
Development Limited (“Landing International”) for the year 2014. During the
year, we achieved breakthroughs in expanding our business coverage. The
group of Landing International (the “Group”) grasped the opportunities arising
from Jeju market by acquiring a casino license and participating in the casino
business there. Meanwhile, we made good progress in the “Myth & History Park”
project, and held a groundbreaking ceremony for it in February 2015. All of these
laid the solid foundations of the Group’s business in Jeju and represented an
important new chapter for the development of Jeju’s tourism industry.

Upon successfully acquiring the casino business at Hyatt Regency Jeju Hotel in
Jeju, South Korea in June 2014 and obtaining one of the eight casino licenses in
Jeju, the Group immediately tapped into Jeju market by commencing its casino
business there. Subsequently, Genting Hong Kong Limited (shares of which are
listed on the main board of Stock Exchange under the stock code of 678) has
been introduced as a joint venture partner into this project. The grand opening of
the casino operated under the international tradename of “Genting Jeju” was
held in January 2015. Equipped with world-class gaming facilities, the casino will
offer a refreshing experience to its customers. With the introduction of the first
world-class casino brand to Jeju, the casino will be able to greatly enhance the
operational efficiency and performance of the Jeju casinos and lay solid
foundations for the future development of our business in South Korea.

Furthermore, the groundbreaking ceremony of the “Myth & History Park”, a
world-class integrated resort with an area of 2.50 million square meters jointly
developed by Landing International and Genting Singapore PLC was held in 121
February 2015. It is expected that such project will commence operation in
phases gradually from 2017 and will be completed in 2019. Certain parts of the
resort under such project, named as “Resorts WorldTM Jeju” (“RWJ”), will
become one of South Korea’s largest integrated resorts. RWJ will house Jeju’s
largest family theme park offering more than 20 rides and attractions in 7
different zones under the themes of myths and legends from all over the world;
Jeju’s largest adventure waterpark and one of South Korea’s most exciting
themed retail and food complexes. The resort will also include luxury villas, Jeju’s
first 6-star hotel and a destination spa. According to the development plan, the
hotel will offer more than 2,000 rooms, and will be equipped with full meeting
and conference facilities that are suitable for hosting regional and international
meetings, incentive travel, conventions and celebratory events. In addition, RWJ
will provide cultural facilities, leisure and entertainment amenities, as well as
approximately 1,500 luxury serviced apartments and residential villas.

We are optimistic about the development of Jeju, South Korea, which is the
country’s only region that allows visa-free entry by individual visitors from 180
countries such as the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), Japan, Malaysia and
Singapore. According to the information provided by Jeju Free International City
Development Center, the number of visitors to Jeju in 2014 reached 12.273
million, representing an increase of 13.1% compared to that in 2013. In
particular, the number of visitors from the PRC was over 2.85 million. We expect
that more tourists will visit Jeju and the province’s gaming and tourism industries
will achieve remarkable growth after the “Myth & History Park” and other
sightseeing attractions are completed and put into operation over the coming
few years.

Presently, most people are visiting Jeju for sightseeing because the island is
noted for spectacular scenery and traditional custom and cultures, that makes
Jeju becomes one of the most popular destinations in South Korea. However,
we are of the view that Jeju is in need of large-scale entertainment and resort
facilities to meet the requirements of international visitors as the tourism industry
is booming. | am confident that the Group, leveraging its professional knowledge
and experience, will establish a world-class integrated resort of which Jeju’s
residents will be proud. This will also reinforce Jeju’s reputation as a paradise
resort. The Group will be able to bring fruitful returns to its shareholders through
its investment in Jeju, a new market with enormous potential for growth.

All these achievements made by Landing International in just a year are not a
matter of chance. | would like to take this opportunity to thank our investors for
their support and trust, our teams for their dedication and contribution, and all
the friends and acquaintances for their care and help.

Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Director(s)”) (the “Board”) of
Landing International Development Limited (the “Company”), | have
pleasure to report on the financial results, operations and other aspects of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s consolidated turnover
was approximately HK$223,318,000 (2013: HK$181,075,000). A loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$293,677,000 (2013: loss of HK$137,147,000) was recorded. The
increase in loss for the year when comparing to last year was mainly
attributable to (i) the administrative expenses in connection with the newly
acquired casino business; (i) pre-construction administrative expenses for
the integrated resort development; (i) increase in other operating and
administrative expenses due to the Group’s expansion; and (iv) an
impairment of goodwill recognized during the year. The basic and diluted
loss per share was HK1.76 cents (2013: basic and diluted loss per share of
HK2.89 cents (restated)) respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the consolidated net asset value per share
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$0.21 (2013:
HK$0.08).

REVIEW OF OPERATION

The Company is an investment holding company, and during the year, the
principal activities of the Group are (i) design, manufacturing and sale of the
light-emitting diode (“LED”) and semiconductor lighting related products (the
“Lighting Business”); (ii) property development (“Property
Development”); (i) development and operation of an integrated resort (the
“Integrated Resort Development”); and (iv) casino business (the “Casino
Business”).

Lighting Business

Despite the steady growth of customer demand and market penetration of
the LED products, the performance of the Lighting Business and its
transaction volume did not have any notable improvement as compared to
last year. The revenue of the Lighting Business was approximately
HK$201,951,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014, which represented
an increase of 11.5% from approximately HK$181,075,000 for the year
2013. The gross profit of the Lighting Business was approximately
HK$37,223,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 while it was
approximately HK$37,704,000 for the year 2013, representing a decrease
in gross profit margin from 20.8% in year 2013 to 18.4% in year 2014.
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As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill of the Lighting
Business was approximately HK$16,135,000 (2013: HK$75,135,000),
which was arrived at after impairment of the goodwill of HK$59,000,000
being recognized during the year (2013: nil).

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) was
determined by income-based approach adopted by Roma Appraisals
Limited (the “Valuer”), an independent qualified valuer, based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by the senior management of the
Company.

In the process of the valuation, the Valuer has taken into account the
uniqueness of the business operation and the LED industry in which the
Lighting Business is participating. The income-based approach has been
adopted rather than market-based approach or asset-based approach
since the income-based approach could better reflect the market value of
the Lighting Business without omitting most of the important assumptions.

The key underlying assumptions and respective changes used in the cash
flow projections are summarized as follows:

—  Average gross margins of 23% (2013: 28%) and average revenue
growth rate of 10% (2013: 14%) to reflect the deterioration of the
Lighting Business with reference to the average performance in the
previous years and the expected returns within the relevant industry;

—  Discount rate of 10.46% (2013: 12.55%) is used with reference to the
current market data for the relevant industry and comparable
companies; and

—  Terminal growth rate of 3.20% (2013: 3.22%) is used with reference
to Mainland China’s average inflation rate in the past five years.

The LED products are facing price pressure as the Lighting Business has
been continuously and adversely affected by the keen competition within
the industry.
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On 7 June 20183, in order to diversify the income source for its continuous
development, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Double Earn Holdings Limited (“Double Earn”) at a
consideration of HK$550 million (the “Yueyang Acquisition”).

Double Earn, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary (Yueyang Nanhu
Meishu Properties Limited# (&[5 B EE B 2% F R A 7)) (the “Yueyang
Company”)), is principally engaged in the development and operation
of a parcel of land situated on the western shore of Nanhu Lake# (5 #),
Yueyang, Hunan Province, PRC, which is under development into high-end
residential buildings with club houses and parking lots. The construction
work was commenced in July 2013 and the first stage of pre-sale has
begun in January 2014.

During the year, about 50% of the residential property units available in the
first stage of pre-sale had been contracted. Those contracted residential
property units are planned for delivery to customers and will be recognised

# The English translation of Chinese names or words, where indicated are included for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded on the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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The only visa-free entry region of South Korea for individual

visitors from around 180 countries including the PRC, Japan,

Malaysia & Singapore. According to Jeju Free International

City Development Center, the number of visitors for the year
| 2014 reached 12.273 million, representing an increase of
13.1% as compared to 2013. Among which, the number of
visitors from the PRC was over 2.85 million, representing
approximately 23.3% of the total number.
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as turnover in coming years. Included in trade and other payables as at 31
December 2014, approximately HK$135,221,000 being the deposits
received for such pre-sale. Also, the Group has allocated additional fund to
the Yueyang Company for supporting its construction works. As at 31
December 2014, the properties under development for this segment was
approximately HK$896,654,000.

On 14 August 2013, the Company and Jeju Free International City
Development Center (the “dDC”) entered into a memorandum of agreement
with respect to the intended investment on certain parcels of land totaling
approximately 2,319,613 square meters of the Myth-History Park project
located at Seogwang-ril in Andeog-myeon, Seoguipo City, Jeju, South
Korea (the “Land”) for the development, management and operation of a
certain project that encompasses real estate, entertainment and hotel and
hospitality businesses (the “deju Project”). The Company had set up
Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. (“Landing Jeju”), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company which was incorporated in South Korea
with limited liability, for the purpose of undertaking the Jeju Project.
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On 30 September 2013, the Company, Landing Jeju and JDC entered into
a project agreement which governed, among other things, the powers and
obligations of the parties in respect of the Jeju Project. On 25 October
2013, the Company, Landing Jeju and JDC entered into a land acquisition
agreement in relation to the acquisition of the Land at a total consideration
of KRW136 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$985.5 million).

On 7 February 2014, the Company joined force with Genting Singapore
PLC (“Genting Singapore”) (a public limited company established under
the laws of the Isle of Man and the shares of which are listing on the Main
Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited) and its
subsidiaries (the “Genting Singapore Group”) by entering into a
shareholders agreement between the Company, Landing Jeju and Happy
Bay Pte. Ltd. (“HBL”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Genting
Singapore (the “Shareholders Agreement”) to form a strategic partnership
to develop, manage and operate the Jeju Project which is a planned
development comprising an integrated resort with hotel, gaming facilities
and residential properties with an estimated investment amount totaling
approximately KRW2,368 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$17.16
billion). On 26 March 2014, all the conditions precedent for the Shareholders
Agreement had been fulfilled, and accordingly, completion of the
Shareholders Agreement (“SHA Completion”) took place on 27 March
2014. Upon the SHA Completion, pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement,
(i) the Company and HBL had paid KRW32,468.54 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$235 million) and KRW82,500 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$598 million) respectively to Landing Jeju for subscription
of its shares such that Landing Jeju was then owned as to 50% by the
Company and 50% by HBL; and (i) HBL had made loans, or debt financing,
in the amount of KRW82,500 million (equivalent to approximately HK$598
million), and the Company had advanced such a sum which when
aggregated with the shareholder’s loan already advanced by the Company
to Landing Jeju as of the SHA Completion, would be equal to the sum of
KRW82,500 million (equivalent to approximately HK$598 million), in
immediately available funds to Landing Jeju.

Landing Jeju is now owned as to 50% by each of the Company and HBL,
and has a paid up capital of KRW165,000 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,196 million) comprising 16,500,000 ordinary shares
and shareholders’ loans in the same aggregate amount of KRW165,000
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,196 million), and has become a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the financial results of which
are continue to be consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.
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To leverage the respective strength and experience of the Company and
Genting Singapore Group in the areas of real estate development and
gaming and integrated resorts development, operation and management,
pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement, the parties had outsourced the
relevant fields and business of the Jeju Project to the affiliates of the
Company or the Genting Singapore Group via a gaming operator
agreement, a hotel operator agreement, a theme park operator agreement
and a residential management agreement (which are collectively referred to
as the “Operator and Services Agreements”) which had become
effective upon the SHA Completion. An associate was formed by the
Company and HBL, with each of them contributing Singapore Dollar 1
towards the paid up capital of such company and owning 50% of its issued
shares, to act as the service provider under the hotel operator agreement.
The Operator and Services Agreements could ensure that the fundamentals
and facilities of the Jeju Project would be well built and managed by a
quality and experienced management team.

The SHA Completion has fostered a close strategic alliance between the
Group and the Genting Singapore Group. By leveraging on the extensive
expertise and experience of Genting Singapore Group in gaming and
integrated resort development and management and the Group’s
management experiences in property development projects, the Group will
be able to develop the Jeju Project into a world-class integrated resort in
Asia.

On the other hand, for the purpose of increasing the efficiency and
competitiveness of the Group by offering premium and efficient travelling
services to its high net worth guests and customers for the future sale of the
prime residential properties of the Jeju Project, as well as its premium
guests to the gaming and integrated resort upon its opening, the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 9 February 2014 and a
supplemental agreement on 21 February 2014 respectively with Ms. Xu
Ning (“Ms. Xu”), the executive director of the Company, for the acquisition
of the entire issued shares of Win Rich Group Limited (“Win Rich”) which
were beneficially owned by Ms. Xu and the interest-free shareholder loan at
the total consideration of HK$141.5 million (the “Aircraft Acquisition”).

Win Rich was incorporated for the purpose of entering into a purchase
agreement and the leasing arrangements with respect to an aircraft (the
“Aircraft’) at the purchase price of US$53.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$415 million). The Aircraft is a brand new Bombardier
Global 6000 aircraft with engine model Rolls-Royce BR710A2-20.

Under the relevant leasing arrangements, the principal lease amount of the
Aircraft is US$42.56 million (equivalent to approximately HK$332 million),
being the aggregate of the amounts paid or to be paid by the lessor for the
partial settlement of the consideration for the purchase of the Aircraft and
shall be settled by Win Rich in ten installments with interests thereon, in the
form of rental payments, every six months commencing on the delivery date
of the Aircraft.
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The completion of the Aircraft Acquisition took place on 7 April 2014 and
accordingly, Win Rich had become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Aircraft was delivered in early of June 2014 and is now put
into operation. Interest and lease payments of approximately HK$58 million
were paid during the year.

Subsequent to the memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”) dated 22
March 2014 which was entered into by the Company and Strategic Dragon
Global Limited (“Strategic Dragon”) as vendor, a sale and purchase
agreement dated 2 April 2014 and a supplemental agreement dated 16
June 2014 (the “Casino SP Agreements”) were entered into by Magical
Gains Holdings Limited (“Magical Gains”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Ultra
Matrix International Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability (‘Ultra Matrix”) and all outstanding interest-free
demand loan being owed by Ultra Matrix to Strategic Dragon as at the date
of completion of such acquisition (the “Casino Acquisition”), at the
consideration of KRW120 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$876
million) (the “Casino Consideration”).

The completion of the Casino Acquisition took place on 16 June 2014 and
1,459,854,014 Shares (the “Consideration Shares”) have been allotted
and issued to Strategic Dragon at the issue price of HK$0.6 in full
satisfaction of the Casino Consideration. The Group was then, through its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in South Korea, Grand
Express Korea Co., Ltd. (“GEK”), engaged in the casino business by
operating a casino at Hyatt Regency Jeju Hotel (the “deju Casino”)
pursuant to a casino license (the “Casino License”) under the Tourism
Promotion Act in Jeju, South Korea.

To facilitate a smooth transition and integration of the Casino Business into
the Group, upon completion of the Casino Acquisition on 16 June 2014,
Strategic Dragon, as a service provider, and GEK entered into a
management services agreement for a term of four months (the “Casino
Management Agreement”). Pursuant to the Casino Management
Agreement, Strategic Dragon had provided, among other things, guidance
on and assistance in the overall management, operation, transition and
integration of the Casino Business. The Casino Management Agreement
was terminated on 19 October 2014 when the renovation of the entire Jeju
Casino commenced.

As security for the due and punctual performance for obligations of Strategic
Dragon under the Casino SP Agreements, in particular, the indemnities
provided under the supplemental agreement and the Casino Management
Agreement, a share charge of 1,000,000,000 Consideration Shares in
favour of Magical Gains (the “Charged Shares”) was entered on 16 June
2014. The Charged Shares will be fully discharged and released upon,
among other things, the expiry of two years from completion of the Casino
Acquisition or the expiry or earlier termination of the Casino Management
Agreement. During the year ended 2014 and as at the date of this report,
250,000,000 Charged Shares had been released upon the satisfaction of
one of the security release conditions.
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On 18 November 2014, Magical Gains, the Company and Pearl Concept
Enterprises Limited (“Pearl Concept”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Genting Hong Kong Limited (shares of which are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
stock code 678, “Genting HK”), entered into a subscription and loan
agreement, pursuant to which Magical Gains had conditionally agreed to
allot and issue 100 shares in the capital of Magical Gains (the “Subscription
Shares”) to Pearl Concept at the subscription price of approximately
HK$41,490,000 (the “Subscription Price”), and Pearl Concept had
conditionally agreed to subscribe for such Subscription Shares (the
“Subscription and Loan Agreement”).

Completion of the Subscription and Loan Agreement took place on 23
December 2014 and the Subscription Price had been received from Pearl
Concept. Upon such completion, Pearl Concept also made available the
loan in the principal amount of approximately HK$875,912,000 (the “Loan”)
to Magical Gains according to the terms and conditions of the Subscription
and Loan Agreement. Magical Gains applied HK$125,000,000 of the Loan
for the full repayment of the shareholder loan made by the Company to
Magical Gains, and the remaining balance of the Loan is applied for (i) the
general corporate and working capital purposes of the Jeju Casino; and (ii)
covering the costs incurred by GEK for the purpose of the renovation and
refurbishing works at the Jeju Casino.

After the completion of the Subscription and Loan Agreement, each of the
Company and Pearl Concept is now holding 50% of the issued share capital
of Magical Gains with a shareholders agreement being entered into by
Magical Gains, the Company and Pearl Concept (the “MG Shareholders
Agreement”) to regulate their respective rights in Magical Gains and its
subsidiaries (the “Magical Gains Group”). Magical Gains Group have
ceased to be subsidiaries, but have become joint ventures, of the Company.

The Subscription and Loan Agreement and the MG Shareholders
Agreement represented a strategic deploy of the Group that is in alignment
with the Group’s plan for the Jeju Casino and in favor of the Group’s long
term interests as a whole by strengthening the financial position of the
Magical Gains Group. Magical Gains Group, which will be able to leverage
the managerial expertise, marketing, customer base and other supports of
Genting HK, will enable the Jeju Casino to have a competitive edge over the
other market players in the gaming industry in Jeju, South Korea. Also, the
Board is of the view that the established brand-name of Genting HK can
enhance the Jeju Casino’s own branding and generate a synergistic effect
on the brand building of the Company and Genting HK.
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According to the MG Shareholders Agreement, Pearl Concept has procured
Genting HK to grant GEK a non-exclusive royalty free right and licence
throughout South Korea to use and display the trade marks, service marks,
trade names, logos, registered and unregistered design rights, copyrights of
Genting HK registered in South Korea, as well as all of the confidential and
proprietary information, techniques and systems of Genting HK necessary
for the operation of the Jeju Casino (the “Genting Know-how”). The right
and licence in respect of the Genting Know-how shall be personal to GEK
and GEK shall not be entitled to transfer, assign, sub-licence or deal in any
other way in respect of such right or licence.

Intangible asset of approximately HK$872,299,000, representing the fair
value of the Casino License, was resulted from the Casino Acquisition as at
16 June 2014. Subsequently, upon the completion of the Subscription and
Loan Agreement on 23 December 2014, such intangible asset was
derecognized due to the deemed disposal of the Magical Gains Group. As
at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the interests in joint ventures,
which represented the 50% shareholding of Magical Gains owned by the
Company, was approximately HK$876,132,000, representing the aggregate
of (i) the share of net assets in joint ventures of Nil due to the net liabilities
position of Magical Gains Group and (ii) loans to joint ventures of
approximately HK$876,132,000 as at 31 December 2014.

Casino Business’s segment revenue of approximately HK$21,367,000
(2013: nil) was recorded during the year. However, a segment loss of
approximately HK$20,261,000 (2013: Nil) was resulted mainly due to the
suspension of business during renovation period of Jeju Casino since
October 2014. Subsequently, the Jeju Casino was re-opened on 18 January
2015 after its renovation.

LIGHTING BUSINESS

During the year, the Lighting Business did not make any markable
improvement despite the steady growth of customer demand and market
penetration of LED products. Lower technological barrier causes keen
competition in the market for LED related products and higher chances of
losing orders from customers. The demand from replacing lighting products
will begin to decrease with time due to the significantly longer lifespans of
LED lighting products. As such, the management will continue to monitor
and review both the operations and financial performance of the Lighting
Business to formulate long-term business strategy for the Group in the
coming year, which may include restructuring or downsizing the Lighting
Business, if the unfavorable operating environment continues.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Due to the development of infrastructure and completion of railway and
expressway projects, the economic environment and gross domestic
product in Yueyang keep growing strongly in 2014. Moreover, following the
substantial completion of the overall property construction work with well-
established environmental ancillary facilities in the region and by stepping up
its marketing efforts, it is expected that these factors will continue to drive
the domestic demand for luxurious residential districts in Yueyang.
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During the year, about 50% of the residential property units available in the
first stage of pre-sale had been contracted. The percentage of completion
of the first stage and second stage as at 31 December 2014 were 88% and
17%, respectively, based on the total investment amount. Considered the
property market in China, the management will closely monitor the market
condition and will decide the timeframe for applying for the permit of second
stage of pre-sale accordingly.

On 12 February 2015, graced by Mr. Won Hee-ryong, the Governor of Jeju
Special Self-Governing Province, Landing Jeju held a groundbreaking
ceremony in Jeju, South Korea to mark the official start of the construction
work of the Jeju Project. According to the building permits granted by the
Jeju government (based on the current development plan) for zones A and
R of the Land forming part of the Jeju Project, Landing Jeju is permitted to
develop and construct (i) a gaming and integrated resort with a total gross
floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 306,763 square meters comprising
premium hotels and a villa hotel and other conferencing and exhibition
facilities, a gaming facility, a theme park and shopping and other
entertainment and tourism facilities and (i) condominiums, villas, bungalows
and other accommodation facilities with a GFA of approximately 132,265
square meters. Landing Jeju will continue to work closely with the local
government of Jeju, South Korea to ensure the smooth progress and
completion of the Jeju Project.

The Jeju Project is expected to be one of South Korea’s largest integrated
resorts, spanning across a land area of approximately 2.5 million square
metres. Slated to open progressively from 2017, under the current
development plan, the Jeju Project will house Jeju’s largest family theme
park offering more than 20 rides and attractions in 7 different zones under
the themes of myths and legends from all over the world; Jeju’s largest
adventure waterpark and one of South Korea’s most exciting themed retail
and food complexes. Its premium hotels will have more than 2,000 rooms,
boasting luxury villas, Jeju Island’s first 6-star hotel and a destination spa.
The hotels will be equipped with full meeting and conference facilities that
are suitable for hosting regional and international meetings, incentives,
conventions and events. In addition, the hotels will provide cultural facilities,
leisure and entertainment amenities, as well as approximately 1,500 luxury
serviced apartments and residential villas. The entire development is
expected to be completed by 2019.

Jeju, South Korea, which is the only visa-free entry region of South Korea
for individual visitors from 180 countries such as the PRC, Japan, Malaysia
and Singapore. According to the information provided by JDC, the number
of visitors for the year 2014 reached 12.273 million, representing an
increase of 13.1% as compared to year 2013. Among which, the number of
visitors from the PRC was over 2.85 million. Following the completion and
opening of the integrated resort of the Jeju Project and other sightseeing
attractions over the coming few years, it is expected that more tourists will
be visiting Jeju and the local gaming and tourism industry will achieve
remarkable growth.
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On 18 January 2015, the grand opening of the Jeju Casino was held to publicise
and celebrate its re-opening after the transfer of the 50% ownership of Magical
Gains and the renovation. The Jeju Casino is now operated under the tradename
of “Genting Jeju”, and currently has 26 Baccarat tables, 1 Blackjack table, 1 Tai
Sai table, 1 Roulette table and 16 slot machines.

With over 40 year’s history, Korea is one of the largest gaming market in Asia
with USD2.4 billion in revenue in year 2013. There are total 17 casinos in South
Korea, among which 8 are located in Jeju. With the commencement of coming
world-class integrated resorts in Jeju and the recent uncertainty in Macau
gaming market, the Group believes Korea gaming market will have a significant
growth in the coming years.

The Company will pay close attention to the performance of the existing
businesses of the Group. At the same time, the management will proactively
seek for any investment opportunity in other businesses with promising prospect
and/or companies with profitability track record such that the income base of the
Group could be broadened and diversified.

In addition, the Company will keep looking for fund raising opportunities to
further strengthen the financial position of the Group as and when appropriate.
As at the date of this report, the Company has not yet identified any suitable fund
raising opportunity.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had non-current assets of
approximately HK$2,156,965,000 (2013: HK$444,989,000) and net current
assets of approximately HK$3,190,807,000 (2013: HK$404,798,000). The
current ratio, expressed as the ratio of the current assets over the current
liabilities, was 6.85 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 1.56). The significant
increase in net current assets and current ratio is mainly due to (i) the
increase in the cash and bank balances by approximately
HK$1,389,711,000 after the completion of the rights issue on the basis of
one rights share for every two shares held on the record date at HK$0.3 per
rights share (the “Rights Issue”) on 4 February 2014 with gross proceeds
of approximately HK$1,416,640,000 and completions of several share
subscriptions with a gross total of approximately HK$1,267,000,000 being
raised; (i) increase in properties under development by approximately
HK$920,369,000 for the Jeju Project and residential properties of Yueyang
Company; (iii) the decrease in amount due to ultimate holding company by
approximately HK$370,009,000 after setting off against the subscription
proceeds for the Rights Issue; and (iv) the decrease in the amount due to
related company by approximately HK$123,273,000 after full repayment of
an entrusted loan of RMB100,000,000 with its accrued interest.

BMREEN _T—RF—A+/\AEERE - U
EMREMNZIRES K BEET H0%EE# R
BT R ERHR o BIMNIRGEIG IR A [ RTRE M
EIRE L BINRE 26 RBAREHER - 19RT—5
BEtG  1SRAAG 1 RIEBIERI6 B ATH -

BEIBYEDEBIOESE A NEXIEEYMS
2 RIE—=FHBRE24EETL - mER
BEITRIRESS  HAPRSRMUNEMN - BEEHRE
SRAERNEIEEEMNFAE - i LA ERAETYm
SAREAR - AREEREREEY ISR AR
FHRRBER -
AAREEINESRAEBIR A EK 2 KRB - BiLR
B TEESTEEMAISBEZEBE SEAT
FEZ RARIRREEYEIRERS  ER RS T
BRANEERAER -

AN ARBHREERREENERERE - 15
KB MBARE M BEAAR - RAREEH
ARELDRYEINEMNAERERS -

MRBEREEHES
R-E—NNF+—_A=+—8  AEEZIERHE
E #) 52,156,965,000/ t( — & — = F:

444,989,000 L) MABHEEFEANLN A
3,190,807,00078 JL. ( =& — = : 404,798,000 %
L) e MZZE—ME+_A=+—8  RELERED
REBEERRDAEBEZLE) B85 (ZT—=F :
1.56) - MBEEFERTELEANBEEINFEZ A
ROR—ZZE—NE-ANA  ZREHAHEEE
M AR AR 10 JE 2 — IR AR AR 10« R E IR T R HE AR
9 0.3 LT 2 AR ([ AR ]) B M E L AT
TE B FA %9 1,416,640,00078 7T & 75 T %17 528 26K
ME LM FEA1,267,000,00078 714 » IWE MIRTT
45 R4 18 1491,389,711,00078 7T ¢ (i) BB N E B &
EBERARIZEEMEMEREERYWELINGD
920,369,000 7T (iii) FA K $5 (1% 2 3R B8 AT1S 3R 8
1%+ B SRR A B SR IE R 4 49 370,009,000 7%
T R (v REBEEEEZ T ERARE 100,000,000
BRI EER B & FEA RIS QR IR ALY
123,273,000 7T °



33 ERBERERARDLA “E-NFEFR

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there were provision for impairment
of trade receivables amounting to approximately HK$4,687,000 (2013:
reversal of impairment of trade receivables of approximately HK$289,000)
and provision for impairment of other receivables amounting to
HK$3,626,000 (2013: HK$814,000), and these provisions mainly consisted
of overdue receivables with aging period over one year to comply with the
applicable accounting standards in accordance with the long outstanding
loan and receivables. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had trade and
other receivables of approximately HK$427,229,000 (2013:
HK$137,456,000). As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$1,655,667,000, with approximately
HK$27,444,000 and HK$1,139,328,000 held in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and
Korean Won respectively and the remaining held in Hong Kong dollar (2013:
HK$265,956,000, with approximately HK$75,419,000 and
HK$187,486,000 held in RMB and Korean Won respectively).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had trade and other payables of
approximately HK$389,614,000 (2013: HK$128,475,000), current bank
borrowings in RMB with fixed interest rate of approximately HK$89,676,000
(2013: HK$87,095,000) and no other borrowings (2013: approximately
HK$10,127,000), while total liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$1,382,151,000 (2013: HK$730,752,000). The Group’s gearing ratio,
which was measured on the basis of the Group’s total liabilities divided by
total assets, was 23.5% (2013: 46.5%).

Details of segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 20 December 2013, the Company announced the Rights Issue. On 4
February 2014, after the completion of the Rights Issue, a total of
4,722,1383,286 rights shares were issued.

On 7 February 2014, the Company entered into a share subscription
agreement with the Genting Singapore Group (through its indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary) pursuant to which the Genting Singapore Group has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue 810,000,000 subscription shares at a price of
HK$0.30 per subscription share (the “Genting Subscription”). In order to
further strengthen the equity base of the Company and to accommodate
further possible financing needs of the Group, in addition to the Genting
Subscription, the Company also entered into the other subscription
agreements with three other subscribers on 7 February 2014 to issue an
aggregate of 1,060,000,000 subscription shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.4 per subscription share. Completions of the subscriptions of
1,370,000,000 subscription shares and 500,000,000 subscription shares
took place on 1 April 2014 and 11 April 2014 respectively, and total of
1,870,000,000 subscription shares were issued.
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On 8 June 2014, the Company entered two subscription agreements with
two subscribers respectively to allot and issue a total of 1,200,000,000
subscription shares at a price of HK$0.5 per subscription share.
Completions of the subscriptions of 700,000,000 subscription shares and
500,000,000 subscription shares took place on 17 June 2014 and 8 July
2014 respectively, and total of 1,200,000,000 subscription shares were
issued.

The completion of the Casino Acquisition took place on 16 June 2014 and
1,459,854,014 Consideration Shares were allotted and issued to Strategic
Dragon at the issue price of HK$0.6 in full satisfaction of the Casino
Consideration.

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 18,696,253,872 with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

AIRCRAFT

On 9 February 2014 and 21 February 2014, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement respectively
with Ms. Xu for the acquisition of the entire issued shares of Win Rich which
is beneficially owned by Ms. Xu and the interest-free shareholder loan at the
total consideration of HK$141.5 million. Win Rich was incorporated for the
purpose of entering into a purchase agreement and the leasing agreements
with respect to the Aircraft. The relevant resolution was passed in a special
general meeting of the Company held on 28 March 2014 by way of poll.

The completion of the Aircraft Acquisition took place on 7 April 2014. Details
of which have been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
9 February 2014, 21 February 2014 and 7 April 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 12 March 2014.

JEJU PROJECT

On 7 February 2014, the Company entered into the Shareholders
Agreement with Landing Jeju and HBL to form a strategic partnership to
develop, manage and operate the Jeju Project, pursuant to which, upon the
SHA Completion, Landing Jeju is owned as to 50% by the Company and
50% by HBL. The issue of new shares by Landing Jeju to HBL constituted a
deemed disposal by the Company.

The SHA Completion took place on 27 March 2014. Details of which have
been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 9 February
2014 and 27 March 2014.
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CASINO BUSINESS

Jeju, South Korea

On 22 March 2014, the Company entered into the MOU with Strategic
Dragon, pursuant to which, with the term of six months after the signing
date of the MOU (or such longer period as the parties to the MOU may
mutually agree to in writing), Strategic Dragon had expressed its intention to
sell, and the Company had expressed its intention to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Ultra Matrix which, through its subsidiaries, would
principally engage in the Casino Business.

The sale and purchase agreement dated 2 April 2014 and a supplemental
agreement dated 16 June 2014 related to the Casino Acquisition were
entered between Magical Gains as the purchaser, Strategic Dragon as the
vendor, and the guarantor.

The completion of the Casino Acquisition took place on 16 June 2014 and
the Group, through GEK, was then engaged in the Casino Business. Details
of which have been disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
22 March 2014, 3 April 2014 and 16 June 2014 respectively.

On 18 November 2014, Magical Gains, the Company and Pearl Concept
entered into the Subscription and Loan Agreement, pursuant to which,
Magical Gain had agreed to allot and issue and Pearl Concept had agreed
to subscribe 100 shares in the capital of Magical Gain, representing 50% of
the issued share capital of Magical Gains. The issue of new shares by
Magical Gains to Pearl Concept constituted a deemed disposal by the
Company.

Completion of the Subscription and Loan Agreement took place on 23
December 2014. Details of which have been disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 18 November 2014, 21 November
2014 and 23 December 2014.

Gangwon-do, South Korea

On 15 December 2014, the Company as the purchaser, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (“Gangwon Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Jumbo Prize Limited (“dumbo Prize”) pursuant to which Jumbo Prize
had conditionally agreed to sell and transfer, and the Company had
conditionally agreed to acquire, among others, the entire issued share
capital of Wealth Seed Group Limited (the “Target Company”) at the
consideration of approximately HK$868,659,000. The Target Company,
through its indirect subsidiary, owns and operates casino business now
carried under the trade name of Alpensia Casino at Holiday Inn Resort in
Pyeongchang, Gangwon-do Province, South Korea pursuant to the casino
license under the Tourism Promotion Act. A refundable deposit of
HK$210,000,000 had been paid pursuant to the Gangwon Sale and
Purchase Agreement. However, some of the conditions set out in the
Gangwon Sale and Purchase Agreement had not been satisfied or waived
and no extension of the long stop date had been agreed; hence, Gangwon
Sale and Purchase Agreement lapsed on 28 February 2015 subsequently.
Details of which have been disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 15 December 2014 and 27 February 2015.
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Saved as disclosed above, there was no other significant investment,
material acquisition or disposal that should be notified to the shareholders of
the Company up to the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately HK$655,887,000 (2013: HK$1,558,398,000), in respect of
the property development, purchase of production equipment and
expansion of production lines.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material capital
commitment.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material contingent
liability (2013: Nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group pledged its property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and properties under
development of approximately HK$530,382,000 (2013: HK$26,711,000),
approximately HK$15,494,000 (2013: HK$16,122,000), approximately
HK$33,668,000 (2013: HK$37,008,000) and Nil (2013: HK$513,141,000),
respectively, to secure the general borrowing facilities and finance lease
payables.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any charges on assets.

The Group’s objective of cash flow management is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through a combination of internal
resources, bank borrowings, and other debt or equity securities, as
appropriate. The Group is comfortable with the present financial and liquidity
position, and will continue to maintain a reasonable liquidity buffer to ensure
sufficient funds are available to meet liquidity requirements at all times.

Business transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, RMB, Korean Won and United States Dollar. Currently, the Group
does not enter into any agreement to hedge against the foreign exchange
risk. In view of the fluctuation of RMB, Korean Won and United States Dollar
in recent years, the Group will continue monitor the situation closely and will
introduce suitable measures as and when appropriate.
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The Group had limited exposure to interest rate fluctuation on bank
borrowings and amount due to a non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2014, as the interest rates of the bank borrowings and amount due to a
non-controlling interest are fixed throughout their respective loan term.

At 31 December 2014, the Group had finance lease payables that bear
variable interests linked to London Inter-bank Borrowing Rates. Taking into
account of the potential increase in interest rates, the Group will prudently
consider additional derivative financial instruments to hedge against its
interest rate risk exposure if and when appropriate.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had around 600 (2013: 600) full-time
employees with total staff costs (including Directors remuneration) amounted
to approximately HK$109,550,000 (2013: HK$50,319,000). Including
management and administrative staff and production workers, most of the
employees were stationed in Korea while the rest were in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The remuneration, promotion and salary increments of employees
are assessed according to the individual’s performance, as well as
professional and working experience, and in accordance with prevailing
industry practices.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to convey our sincere gratitude to all
employees for their diligence and contributions to the Group.

| would also like to acknowledge the continual support of our customers,
suppliers and shareholders during the year of 2014.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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The Company is committed to uphold a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the belief that they are essential
for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximizing
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements
(both locally and internationally), and to fuffill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has complied with
the code provision as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, except for the deviation as explained in this report.

The Board is in charge of overseeing the business and affairs of the Group
that aims to enhance the Company’s value for stakeholders. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. Roles of the Board include reviewing and
guiding corporate strategies and policies, monitoring financial and operating
performance and setting appropriate risk management policies.

The primary role of the Board is to oversee how management serves the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. To do this, the Board has
adopted corporate governance principles aimed at ensuring that the Board
is independent and fully informed on the key strategic issues facing the
Company. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors.

The Company has appointed Mr. Yang Zhihui as the chairman and
executive Director of the Company on 19 July 2013. Mr. Yang has over 10
years of experience in property development in the PRC. He is responsible
for the leadership and effective running of the Board. The Company does
not have any officer with title of “Chief Executive Officer”, therefore, the
executive Directors undertake the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business and strategic planning of the Group with the advice of
all non-executive Directors. Under the existing arrangement, the Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured and
such arrangement is for the benefits of the Group. However, the Board will
also review regularly the board composition and appoint a Chief Executive
Officer if a suitable person is identified.

ARAERTHFSRKFNERERFTRALBES
BRENFGE - LHRELBHRESRERRES
MEOMIZMERNCOBEREER - BT EZFIBRE
HERE WK IERANEE - Y56 ABEE
A R EEOERNESR - AR EBEEGHERT
BULEEANAR  EFESTRRTREENEE
EVREM

BAREMFRRBET AN BE_T—HF+ =
A=1+—BLLFE  AAF—HEET LR A
14 Z( R EERTADKEEERRSE) (1
EERTR) P BIESC o

EXEeRARBAKEEBNEB AT EER
NEAEERSAAREE SEFERERSHA
Rl BB M IAR DB R ERR Z R EN A
AIRITE - EREREBEENREGATARR
BEMER - BERMEREERRE  UNHEREZ
R E R

EXTZORLEEBRERRRREMA R
BEZNEMITEZAN - Bt - EFSRADLE
ERRA EERREFER/BULIZEEZREAR
AHH T ERMEE - RAREAH  E=2EH
MERITERER =RBIIFATEFAMN °

ARBRZZ-—=ZFEtATNAZENEZRE
READREFERPITES - MEEETEMEERE
BABTELR RAERETETREREESE
BRMIENE - AR R B AL E TR S [1THAR
B 2B Bt - ITEFEEERIFRTESZ
BETARARREB AR ERIEURAE
BzEBRRERE - RIBRAELY  EFEH
B CHRAENRBIESSI T FE  BRELH
BHRAKE - A EFENHTHRIEFS
AR AR ER S EANER R EITHRAR -



39 ERBERERARDLA “E-NFEFR

The balanced board composition has been formed to ensure strong
independence exists across the Board and has met the requirement 3.10A
under the Listing Rules for the Board to have at least one-third in number of
its members comprising independent non-executive directors. At least one
of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The brief biographical details of the Directors
are set out on pages 16 to 17, which demonstrates a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications. The Company has received from
the three independent non-executive Directors annual confirmations of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent. In respect of Code Provision
D.1.4 under the CG Code, subsequent to 31 March 2012, formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment were subsequently executed by all Directors.

In accordance with the bye-Laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of members after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate fullest
possible attendance. The company secretary assists the executive Directors
in setting the agenda of Board meetings and each Director is invited to
present any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such
meetings. Board papers are circulated to all Directors within reasonable time
before the Board meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice if necessary.
Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated to all Directors for
comments. Final versions of minutes are kept by the company secretary
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Director. The Company held thirty seven (37) Board meetings and three
(3) general meetings in 2014.
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The Board has appointed board committees (the “Board Committees”) to
oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. All Board Committees are
provided with sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice, at
the Company’s expense. As at the date of this report, the composition of
the Board and the Board Committees are given below and their respective
responsibilities are discussed in this report.

Board of Directors

EEg

Executive Directors: HITES

Mr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman) MEESE (EE)
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai (Deputy Chairman) REDEEE (FIF/E)
Ms. Zhou Xueyun BAE=Z+

Ms. Xu Ning TRt
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas EEREE

Mr. Chen Lei eptas

Ms. Zhang Xiaolan EXREXT

An updated list of Directors, identifying their roles and functions at the
Company, is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the
requirement set out in the CG Code (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be made on a merit basis and candidates will be
considered against object criteria with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy and review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.
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As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (Committee
Chairman), Mr. Chen Lei and Ms. Zhang Xiaolan.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange to conform to the provisions of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee’s major roles are to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure for Directors and
senior management and to ensure that they are fairly rewarded for their
individual contribution to the Group’s overall performance, having regard to
the interests of shareholders. The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee include determining the specific remuneration packages to all
executive directors and senior management as well as reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The remuneration payable to each of the Directors of the Company is
determined with reference to their individual performance, comparable
market statistics and the operating results of the Company. During the year,
two meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee and attended by
all members to review and discuss the Company’s policy and structure of
remuneration of the Directors. Details of the directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group engaged Zenith CPA Limited to perform audit for the year ended
31 December 2014 at a fee of approximately HK$1,506,000 and the interim
review for the period ended 30 June 2014 at a fee of approximately
HK$250,000.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (Committee
Chairman), Ms. Zhang Xiaolan and Mr. Chen Lei.

On 27 January 2014, Ms. Zhou Xueyun was appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee. On 4 July 2014, Mr. Chen Lei, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, has been appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee to replace Ms. Zhou Xueyun.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange to conform to the provisions of the CG Code.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee are: (i) reviewing and supervising
the Group’s financial statements and internal control procedures; (ii)
monitoring, developing and implementing the Group’s policy on external
auditor; (iii) recommending the appointment and reappointment of the
Group’s external auditor and (iv) developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management and the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and have discussed auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting matters.

During the year, two meetings were held by the Audit Committee and
attended by all members to review and discuss the financial reporting
matters, including the review of the interim and annual financial statements
and appointment of external auditor. During the year, there is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee.

Besides, the Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code Code Provision D.3.1. The
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and
compliance manual, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (Committee
Chairman), Mr. Chen Lei and Ms. Zhang Xiaolan.

The written terms of reference stipulating the authority and duties of the
Nomination Committee are available on websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange to conform to the provisions of the CG Code.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are: (i) reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes; (i) making recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment and succession planning of Directors; (iii) identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; and (iv) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

During the year, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee and
attended by all members to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

BERZEGZIERER  ((1ZHREEREEZ
MR RABEZIR © () B - BREATE
B ESNE R BRED 2 UK (il )?ﬁéﬂq&i“”ﬁeﬁ‘i
B2 SN B R R R (V) BERRRE

ARAZHERGEERER - AOEFRREKE

B - ERZBECHEHEERIMNEZBEI KR
EHASERMN 22 RARED - WEHFAREX
B NEEERMBHEEER -

FR BERZEQLRRTMAERE  MEKENYSE

HEEE Bl BREEE  2EEMTHRE
BB HRRARZBINEZEEN - £ EFTH
BERZBECHTEE RN -

AN BEZE QA BREITRREE AT ZTRIK
XD31FEHAEE AR BRZEEE RN
RAZEEERBELER BFRRAEEEZ
BIIRHEEERR ARARETERREER
ENHEZBERER RTEYRARTM AR
AETERERTIZENARRALEE GRS
N2 -

K$$E¢EIHH RELZEGH=-BBEIUIFNTESF
MR DRIREEARE(ZREEER)  RELE
REXELL -

REZBEZIBRAR  (THRHNEFEZR
B RENAEK (BEKE 2K - FHEEER)
THEMEREL 2 EPREESRHEBER
(N REFEENENTEUASLEFEEFE AR
EEHRNEFSRTHEBER  (\MEABREE
RAEEEFEKREZ AL - WHHERIES 2 185
ATHEZE=IHSEAESSREERER KW
AHABI IFAITER 2@ o

FRREZEGLHRTREHE MEKEBSR
H 2%'%@3§$A2 U RERAEK - WY

ERIEITES 2B -



43 ERERBERARAT —E-MEFR

Corporate Governance Report LEEGRE

The overall attendance record of the Directors at the Board meetings, Board #EWR -—S—INELEEEe 3% EEL5e9
committee meetings and general meetings in 2014 is given as below. FMERARE 2 BEREHN T -

Board Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting

3 F ERZEE® REEZE®  FMZEE EVN-

(37 in total) (PANR (I E])] (1 in total) (2 in total) (3 in total)
(E#37R) (B#2K) (BH#1R) (B#2R%) (R#3R)

Number of Meetings during REERERRE

the year
Executive Directors BiTE=E
Mr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman) MBBEE (F) 32/37 N/ARE R N/ATRER N/ARE 13
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai (Deputy Chairman) R BI85 4 (&) /%)
(Appointed on 22 April 2014) (R=ZF—mFmA
ZTZHEZE) 20/22 N/ATEA N/A7N A N/ATNE A 1/3
Ms. Xu Ning BT 32/37 N/ATNER N/ATER N/AZT i A 1/3
Ms. Zhou Xueyun AERTL 37/37 11 N/AT i A N/ATNEFA 3/3
Mr. Lee Siu Woo ZEMEE
(Appointed on 20 January 2014~ (R=Z—E—H
and resigned on 4 July 2014) —tHEZF
REF—ME+A
TIHEHE) 16/25 N/A T F N/A T F N/ATE A 0/2
Mr. Kong Fanbo LEREE
(Resigned on 27 March 2014) (R-—ZF—mFE=H
—ttEHEHT) 0/11 N/ATNE A N/ATNER N/ATNER 0/0
Mr. Ren Shunying EIER A&
(Resigned on 27 January 2014) (R=ZF—mF—H
Z1+AE) 1/3 N/ATEA N/ATE A N/ATE 0/0

Independent Non-Executive ~ BV EHTEE

Directors
Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas EEREE 31/37 2/2 11 2/2 3/3
Mr. Chen Lei BRELE 34/37 11 11 2/2 3/3
Ms. Zhang Xiaolan EXELL 32/37 2/2 11 2/2 3/3

N/A: Not applicable
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage for directors’
and officers’ liabilities incurred by them in discharge of their duties while
holding office as the directors and officers of the Company.

The newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Group as well as his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates on the
Group’s business and operation, as well as its financial position and budget.
They were also provided with the information which covered topics,
including but not limit to, corporate governance matters, disclosure and
compliance of inside information, updates and changes in relation to
legislative and regulatory requirements in which the Group conducts its
business, and reading materials which are relevant to their duties and
responsibilities for their study and reference. During the year, all Directors
have participated in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its model code for securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines with exact terms, as
set out in Appendix 10 for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of
the Group which give a true and fair view, and are prepared in accordance
with the relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The Directors are
responsible for selecting and applying on a consistent basis suitable
accounting policies and ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
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There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Board understands the importance of presenting a clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s overall performance, financial
positions as well as prospects in a timely manner; and the Board is pleased
to report that, so far, the annual and interim results of the Group are
announced within the three months and two months limit respectively after
the end of the relevant periods.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments of
the shareholders and assets of the Group at all times. The system of internal
control aims to help achieving the Group’s business objectives,
safeguarding assets and maintaining proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information. However, the design of the system
is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement in the financial statements or loss of assets and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure when business objectives are being
sought. Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material controls in
area of financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions for
risks management as well as physical and information systems security. The
Audit Committee reviews internal control issues, if any, identified by external
auditor, regulatory authorities and management, and evaluates the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee in turn reports material issues, if any,
to the Board.

To ensure compliance with all applicable laws and regulations on prevention
of money laundering, especially for the Casino Business, the Group has
engaged an internationally reputed accounting firm having practices in both
Hong Kong and South Korea to review and advise on the anti-money
laundering framework, the related design of controls and policies of the
Casino Business. Based on the experience of Genting HK and with
reference to the professional advices, GEK has developed its own internal
control policy, including especially those related to compliance with the
applicable anti-money laundering laws and regulations. The internal control
department of GEK will, from time to time, evaluate such policy. The Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of implementation of the internal control
system, including the anti-money laundering controls, and found the result
satisfactory.
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The Company has complied with the CG Code and Listing Rules except for
the following deviation:

CODE PROVISION A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election. The Company
has not fully complied with code provision A.4.1, as one independent non-
executive Director was not appointed for a specific term but is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company until 27 June 2014.

In order to compliance with this code, the independent non-executive
Director signed an employment letter with the Company on 27 June 2014
after his re-election at the AGM and his term of office is fixed for a term of
one year commenced from 27 June 2014 and is automatically renewable
for successive terms of one year upon the expiry of the then current term
and is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years at
each annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

Accordingly, since 27 June 2014, the Company has been in compliance
with this code provision.

Ms. Lam Pui Sea (“Ms. Lam”) has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company since 19 August 2013. Ms. Lam is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
holds a bachelor degree in Economics and Finance from the University of
Hong Kong. She has extensive experience in accounting and internal
control, corporate secretarial services and corporate administration.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject to the
Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the company
secretary reports to the chairman on the Group’s company secretarial and
corporate governance matters, all members of the Board have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Lam has taken more than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2014.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Company are taken
by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of the poll are explained to the
shareholders at the commencement of each general meeting, and questions
from shareholders regarding the voting procedures are answered.
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PROCEDURES TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

Requisition to convene a special general meeting can be deposited
by the members of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company.

The requisitionists must submit their requisition in writing, in which it
must state the objects of the meeting, and be duly signed by the
requisitionists, mailed and deposited at Suites 5801-5804, 58/F.,
Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong
Kong for the attention of company secretary; and may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all registered shareholders, provided that
the requisitionists have deposited a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses involved in convening an
extraordinary general meeting. On the contrary, if the requisition has
been verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the directors do not within 21 days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.

A meeting convened under this section by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors in accordance to the bye-
Laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) and the Listing Rules.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid
to the requisitionists by the Company.
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PROCEDURES OF ENQUIRIES TO BE PUT TO THE BOARD AND THE
COMPANY

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board by email:
enquiry@landing.com.hk, fax: (852) 3621 0052, or mail to Suites
5801-5804, 58/F., Two International Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

PROCEDURES TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Company Act”),
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
right of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requestition relates; or not less than 100
shareholders are entitled to request the Company to give shareholders
notice of a resolution which is intended to be moved at the general meeting.
A written notice to that effect signed by the requestitionist(s) with details
contact information must be deposited at the Company’s principle place of
business in Hong Kong at Suites 5801-5804, 58/F., Two International
Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary. The notice shall contain, inter alia, a description
of the proposed resolution desired to be put forward at the general meeting,
the reasons for such a proposal and any material interest of the proposing
shareholder in such a proposal.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar in Bermuda
or Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the general meeting.

The Company’s Bye-Laws (in both English and Chinese) is available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During 2014, there
is no change to the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The purpose of the shareholder communication is to promote effective
communication with shareholders, encourage shareholders to engage
actively with the Company and enable them to exercise their rights as
shareholders effectively.

Information shall be communicated to shareholders through the Company’s
annual general meetings and other general meetings that may be convened,
as well as by maintaining a website (www.582.com.hk) on which information
about the Company’s notices, announcements, proxy forms, circulars,
financial reports, results announcements (for both interim and annual
reporting period) and Bye-Laws are being made available.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are set out
in note 51, 20 and 21 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 63 to 64.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments of the Group during the year are set out in notes 16 and 17
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

Details movements of share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 162.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

For developing the Jeju Project, the Group is committed to working closely
with the local community and stakeholders at Jeju, South Korea to form
long-term partnerships and strives to achieve a sustainable balance
between development and conservation. 300 trees have been conserved to
date and are ready to be transplanted to various parts of the resort after the
completion of its construction. A “Planting Jeju’s Future” tree planting event
was held at the groundbreaking ceremony on 12 February 2015 to
symbolize the Group’s commitment to caring for Jeju’s environment by
planting eight Red Bark Oak trees, a type of Class Il protected species with
high ecological value found only in Gotjawal Forest in Jeju.

The Company also continuously strives to develop LED lighting products,
aiming at achieving the goals of energy-saving, preventing global warming
and reducing resources consumption through its innovative products. The
Company is also committed to attaining a win-win situation for both
environmental protection and its business and enhancing environmental
awareness among the mass.

OUR PEOPLE

The Company always believes that employees are important assets of the
Group and strives to foster open communication with employees through
various channels. The Company has provided safe and enjoyable work
environment, equitable compensation and benefit schemes, and
opportunities for career growth through a variety of learning and
development programmes; and a strong corporate culture where
employees’ contributions are recognized and rewarded. In addition, the
Company aims to become a healthy employer, taking an active role in
wellness advocacy.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has around 600 employees.

The Company encourage employees to get on-the-job training and will
provide training for all levels of the employees to enable them to acquire
competent knowledge and skills through the training, so as to enhance their
working effectiveness and efficiency.

In the near future, the Company will engage in business, environmental and
charity activities aimed at the realization of a sustainable and harmonic
society.
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The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Yang Zhihui (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Kwok Fai (Deputy Chairman) (Appointed on 22 April 2014)

Ms. Zhou Xueyun

Ms. Xu Ning

Mr. Lee Siu Woo (Appointed on 20 January 2014 and
resigned on 4 July 2014)

Mr. Kong Fanbo (Resigned on 27 March 2014)

Mr. Ren Shunying (Resigned on 27 January 2014)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Fok Ho Yin, Thomas
Mr. Chen Lei
Ms. Zhang Xiaolan

In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
Corporate Governance Code Provision A.4 under Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, Ms. Zhou Xueyun, Mr. Chen Lei and Ms. Zhang Xiaolan will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company and any other body
corporate.

No contracts of significance, to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XIV
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); (ii) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (i) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in the Listing
Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

Capacity

Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr. Yang”)
MEZRE((MEED

Held by controlled corporation

FriEHl2 ABR™AE

Held by controlled corporation

FriEsl2 ABRAE

Ms. Xu Ning (“Ms. Xu”)
gyt ((HRzt])

Interest of spouse

foiBtEam

Interest of spouse

foiBtEam
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R i

R-Z—NE+-A=+—H SBERTHREHR
RARRREEEEZE(FERLESRAEK
(TBERIESRE ) EXVE) 2% - HEIRH
REFHHEEE)REFFLAEKRINEXVEET
&SAMMXﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁi%fﬁﬁﬁﬁmE
BHERAE GO B BIE W EESARIEREE 2
ﬁ% KB () IRIREE H N A E 150158 XV 30 56 352
R A RZAGRFT I B AL 1 ¢ 3R (i) IR & T AR Bl ATk
$E7§$ﬁﬁ EHR HMIREST MG ARAT
S FT 2 Em ROR BT

Percentage of

Long or issued Share
Number of  Short Capital of
Shares held Position the Company
ERANE|
EBITRA
FERGEE HFERKRE Bk
8,806,099,340  Long 47.10%
(Notes 1&3) &
(PH5E1 2.3)
8,056,099,340  Short 43.09%
(Notes 1 &3) %A
(PHFE1 %.3)
8,806,099,340  Long 47.10%
(Notes2&3) &
(Hi3E2 & 3)
8,056,099,340  Short 43.09%
(Notes 2 &3) %A

(M3E213)
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Notes:
1. 8,056,099,340 ordinary shares are held by Landing International Limited, a company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by
Mr. Yang. Mr. Yang is the sole director of Landing International Limited as at 31
December 2014. On top of the 8,056,099,340 shares, Mr. Yang is deemed to be
interested in 750,000,000 shares which were pledged to Magical Gains, which is
owned as to 50% by the Company.

2. Ms. Xu is the spouse of Mr. Yang. Under the SFO, Ms. Xu is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Yang is interested.

3. Landing International Limited has pledged its entire 8,056,099,340 shares of the
Company to Kingston Finance Limited. Therefore, Mr. Yang and Ms. Xu are
interested in the shares of the Company of a long position and short position.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors is
a director or employee of a company which has an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV
of the SFO and none of the Directors, the chief executive of the Company
nor their associates had any other interests or short positions in the shares
of the Company, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which any such Director or the chief executive of the
Company is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required to be entered into the register maintained by the
Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be
notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules.

Save for Mr. Yang Zhihui and Ms. Xu Ning, being respectively the controlling
shareholder and a shareholder of Anhui Landing Holding Group Co., Ltd* (%
BESmREEARAT) (“Anhui Landing”), which is a company
principally engaged in property development in the PRC, none of the
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s businesses which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s property development business in
Yueyang, the PRC, as at the date of this report.

# The English translation of Chinese names or words, where indicated are included for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded on the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO
shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company.

FEIRRNR AN S Ik R AR 5P
SR it

RIZB-MF+-A=+—H  BAXFAREES
N EEPIEXVEBE 336 FEZ T ERRERT
MArECEE - THIBERE MG AR REARARRDET
BARHEEIEARRREEITRAE% A EZHHF

B RAA -

Percentage of

Long or issued Share
Number of  Short Capital of
Capacity Shares held Position the Company
AR F
HE% ERITRA
FEROGEE %K= Bk
Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah (“Mrs. Chu”) (Note 3) Held by controlled 8,954,999,340  Long 47.89%
TRELT ([T ])(HiF3) corporation e
FriEsl 2 AR A
Best Forth Limited (“Best Forth”) (Note 3) Held by controlled 8,931,134,340 Long A47.77%
Best Forth Limited ([ Best Forth |) (f7:#3) corporation HE
FriEsl 2 AR A
Ample Cheer Limited (“Ample”) (Note 3) Held by controlled 8,931,134,340 Long A47.77%
Ample Cheer Limited ([ Ample |) (f1:#3) corporation HE
FriEsl 2 AR A
Kingston Finance Limited (“Kingston”) Person having a security 8,931,134,340  Long A47.77%
(Note 2) interest in shares S
eFEHBERAR((EFE]) AR R E AR
(Ktax2) w2z At
Landing International Ltd. (“LIL") (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 8,806,099,340  Long 47.10%
EREEAERAR ((ERERR]) (A1) E=fAA HE
Beneficial Owner 8,056,099,340  Short 43.09%
E=fEAA RE
Mr. Chiu Francois (“Mr. Chiu”) (Note 4) Held by controlled 3,639,000,000  Long 19.46%
Chiu Francois 7 4 ([ Chiu &4 1) (AfaF 4) corporation TA
FriEdl 2 A E1HA
Jumbo Prize Limited (“dumbo Prize”) Beneficial owner 3,639,000,000 Long 19.46%
(Note 4) BB A e

Jumbo Prize Limited ([ Jumbo Prize ])

(Ktit4)
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Number of  Short Capital of

Capacity Shares held Position the Company

P NN

HFREWR BRITRA

55 FisROBE %R Bkt

Mr. Sun Tao (“Mr. Sun”) (Note 5) Held by controlled 1,307,279,373  Long 6.99%
Sun Tao St £ ([Sun e & ) (K77 5) corporation S

gl Pa/NCIE S =)

Fantastic World Investments Limited Beneficial owner 1,307,279,373  Long 6.99%

(“Fantastic World”) (Note 5) EnEAA HE

Fantastic World Investments Limited

(T Fantastic World |) (417#5)

Notes: P 5T
LIL is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yang as to 100%. LIL has pledged its 1. ERBEERMCEEREE100% - ESBEEBA
entire shares of the Company to Kingston. Therefore, LIL, Mr. Yang and Ms. Xu are ARZHRMER TG - At - ERBR - ML
interested in the shares of the Company of a long position and short position. On top ERBELETRERRRNDPHEB B AR ER - K
of the 8,056,099,340 shares, LIL is deemed to be interested in 750,000,000 shares 8,056,099,340 IR 5 5h + B R BRI RARERTF
which were pledged to Magical Gains, which is owned as to 50% by the Company. JH 2 750,000,000 i i 7 R B 12w - Z A RIAAR

BHEH 50% °
Kingston is interested in 8,931,134,340 shares of the Company of a long position in 2. & F) 852 8,931,134,340 [ A AR IR D R B 1T B
which 8,056,099,340 shares of the Company are pledged by LIL as mentioned in % &7 8,056,099,340 & AN A B A 1) an Bt 5 1 A R
note 1. ERERER -
Kingston is wholly-owned by Ample. Ample is 80% owned subsidiary by Best Forth. 3. ®F L HAMple & E#EA ° Ample /4 Best Forth (8 2
Best Forth is wholly owned by Mrs. Chu. Therefore, Kingston, Ample, Best Forth and ZrTEEMB)EAS0% R ZHERR - At - &
Mrs. Chu are therefore deemed to be interested in the relevant shares of Company. FIE - Ample * Best Forth &2 22 4748 AR A X &4
FARM PR ER o

On 15 December 2014, the Company and Jumbo Prize entered into a sale and 4. RZZT—WF+=A+AHA + AAQFHE Jumbo Prize 5t
purchase agreement for the entire share capital of a target company, Wealth Seed B 1% 2 5] Wealth Seed Group Limited 2 2 #B % AN 7] 37
Group Limited, pursuant to which the consideration of approximately B E i 0 Bt R {E4868,659,000% 7t 55 8 A
HK$868,659,000 is satisfied by (i) a refundable deposit of HK$210,000,000 and (i) TR () ATEEET £ 210,000,000 7 7T M (i) #hK
allotting and issuing to Jumbo Prize (or its nominee(s)) 3,639,000,000 shares of the #7658,659,000 /& TL A TEAK IR AIZ S 1 TE &A% 0.181 4
Company at the issue price of HK$0.181 each upon its completion for the balance of JC MJdumbo Prize ( sk H X & A ) B2 % & % 17
approximately HK$658,659,000. Accordingly, Jumbo Prize and its beneficial owner, 3,639,000,0008 A AR H 2 F N F o Bt
Mr. Chiu, are deemed to be interested in 3,639,000,000 shares of the Company of a Jumbo Prize & H & z # B AChiuk £ # &% AR
long position. 3,639,000,000 AR AN HEB TR EZ ©
Fantastic World is interested in 1,307,279,373 shares of the Company of a long 5. Fantastic World 74 1,307,279,373 l{ AR BIf% (0 R A
position. Mr. Sun is the beneficial owner of Fantastic World and therefore deemed to IF 2% © Sun %t A Fantastic World 2 Bz B A -
be interested in the relevant shares of the Company. E AR AR AR EERER D P A o

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of other [ EXIEHZEEIN R_E—NF+_-_A=+—

H BB RN EBEATRER AR R RE M
L (E& BESFRAERGIEXVER) 2B -
AR R EHFFPHEATARESRBEEIE
32 T E 2 B AR - JRBIRETRI ST
HEARP R s SORR -

Directors or their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of, the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

On 9 February 2014 and 21 February 2014, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement and a supplemental agreement (“Win Rich
SP Agreement”) respectively with Ms. Xu as the vendor for the acquisition
of Win Rich. Ms. Xu is the executive director of the Company and therefore
Ms. Xu was a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Win Rich SP Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder constituted a connected transaction for the
Company and were approved by the independent shareholders at a special
general meeting which to be held on 28 March 2014. Details have been
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 12 March 2014.

Following the SHA Completion, Landing Jeju is owned as to 50% by each of
the Company and HBL. HBL and its associates are therefore connected
persons of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and the provision of
services to Landing Jeju under each of the Operator and Services Agreements
including (i) the gaming operator agreement entered into between Landing
Jeju and a wholly owned subsidiary of Genting, (ii) the hotel operator
agreement entered into between Landing Jeju and affiliate(s) 50% owned by
each of HBL and the Company and (i) the theme park agreement entered
into between Landing Jeju and affiliate(s) of HBL and the transactions
respectively contemplated thereunder will constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company. Nevertheless, according to the current
development schedule, the gaming and integrated resort will not be open for
business until the year 2017, no service fees are expected to be payable to
the relevant operator under each of the abovementioned agreements for the
three financial years ending 31 December 2016. Hence, the gaming operator
agreement, the hotel operator agreement and the theme park agreement and
the transactions respectively contemplated thereunder will constitute de
minimis continuing connected transactions for the Company in accordance
with Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules which are exempt from reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

Save as the abovementioned, the material related party transaction(s) as
disclosed in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements do(es) not fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. No disclosure requirement
is needed accordingly.
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There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2014.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, sale to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 40% of the annual revenue and
purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 41% of the annual purchases. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the purchase from the largest supplier represented
approximately 18% of the annual purchases. None of the Directors or any of
their associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Information on the retirement benefits schemes of the Group is set out in
note 3.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set by the
management of the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are considered and
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

HE-T-ME+-A=+—BLFE  KRFR
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 11 July 2010 (the
“Adoption Date”) (the “Share Option Scheme”). Apart from the Share
Option Scheme, the Company has no other share option scheme currently
in force. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to the participants, including any Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors)
and any employees of the Group or any Invested Entity or Substantial
Shareholder and any advisors, consultants, suppliers, customer, services
providers of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or Substantial
Shareholder, and any other group or classes of participants at the sole
discretion of the board, for their contribution to the Group and to enable the
Group to attract and retain employees of appropriate qualifications and with
necessary experience to work for the Group and any Invested Entity.
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may invite any eligible
person including any director and employee of the Group to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years since its Adoption Date. The existing scheme mandate limit in respect
of the granting of options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the
Share Option Scheme has been refreshed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 27 June 2014 which the total number of shares of the
Company may be allotted and issued pursuant to the grant or exercises of
the options under the Share Option Scheme shall not be exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at 27 June 2014, that is 1,819,625,387
shares of the Company.

On 15 December 2014, the Company granted share options (the “Options”)
under the Share Option Scheme to certain eligible grantees (the
“Grantees”), which, subject to acceptance by the Grantees, would enable
the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of 869,375,807 ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company at
the exercise price of HK$0.225 per new share. The Options granted are
exercisable commencing from 15 December 2014 to 14 December 2024
(both dates inclusive) (the “Option Period”). No Options will be exercisable
after the expiry of the Option Period.

Out of the total 869,375,807 Options, 196,310,666 Options were granted
to the Directors, including 186,962,539 Options being granted to Mr. Ng
Kwok Fai and 9,348,127 Options being granted to Ms. Zhou Xueyun.

Other than as disclosed above, no other share options were granted nor
exercised since the Adoption Date.

Subsequently on 8 January 2015, as approved by the Board and consented
by each of the Grantees, the Company and the Grantees have agreed that
the grant of Options to be cancelled in its entirety. No Grantee has exercised
the said Options prior to such cancellation.
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Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

No participant shall be granted an option if the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be
granted (including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant to such participant
would exceed in aggregate 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being unless the proposed grant has been approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting with the proposed grantee
and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant
of the relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of
the grant of the option) but in any case the subscription price shall not be
less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; or (c) the nominal value of
the shares of the Company.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Board confirms that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Group had made charitable or other donation of approximately
HK$1,550,000 during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Zenith CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company on 8
February 2012 in succession to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who resigned
from the office with effect from 7 February 2012. The Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2011,
2012 and 2013 were audited by Zenith CPA Limited. Save for the above,
there were no other changes in the Company’s auditor in the past three
years.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Zenith CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yang Zhihui
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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To the shareholders of

Landing International Development Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Landing
International Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 160, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

ZENITH CPA LIMITED
HESHMBEERMERAT
10/F., China Hong Kong Tower,
8-12 Hennessy Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Zenith CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Po Yuen

Practising Certificate Number: P04887
Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of

Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—Z-mF —E—=fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&%)
REVENUE Uz 5] 223,318 181,075
Cost of sales SHEA (211,299) (143,371)
Gross profit EF 12,019 37,704
Other income and gains H A A R s 6 40,486 4,595
Gains on deemed disposal of subsidiaries WML EH B A Rz K 7 20,422 =
Distribution and selling expenses D REHERY (12,572) (7,745)
Administrative expenses THRAX (312,854) (77,126)
Impairment of goodwill EESEAE 18 (59,000) -
Impairment of trade and other receivables, FEWE 5 IE & H A fE W R IE
net BEFEE (8,313) (625)
Non-cash share option expenses JER S BIRER (3,974) =
Finance costs B 75 A AR 8 (20,369) (95,629)
Share of profits and losses of: AihiER
Joint ventures BEDE = =
Associate AN = =
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLATE 1B 9 (344,155) (138,626)
Income tax credit/(expense) FremiiEe,/ (1) 12 1,499 (3,571)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (342,656) (142,197)
Attributable to: FELL -
Equity holders of the Company RATERFFE A 13 (293,677) (137,147)
Non-controlling interests R (48,979) (5,050)
(342,656) (142,197)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AAREBEEREA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhERER
THE COMPANY 15
(Restated)
(&%)
For loss for the year FEEE
— Basic and diluted — BERREE HK(1.76) cents  HK(2.89) cents

AL

7l
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Consolidated Statement of @,?Agﬁqgﬁgs
Comprehensive Income SE-mEt=AstoALFE

Year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FTHET FHT

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (342,656) (142,197)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME ~ H {2 (F518) W

Other comprehensive (loss)/income to be EgBEF I EEER Y
reclassified to profit or loss in Hip2E (E58), W
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MERINEISFIEE 2
foreign operations b+ Z= (121,052) 14,910
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries RIEB B A RERA AR 74,277 -
Share of other comprehensive income of: DMEEMAEEKE
Joint ventures el = -
Associate AN = -

Net other comprehensive (loss)/income to be H& K EHHIEEIEZ

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent HEipz2m (E5E) et F58

periods and other comprehensive J/A REEEMEE (EE) WS

(loss)/income for the year, net of tax (MBHIE) (46,775) 14,910
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEXEFEAE

FOR THE YEAR (389,431) (127,287)
Attributable to: FEAL

Equity holders of the Company RAEIERFEB A 13 (326,167) (122,231)

Non-controlling interests FEPE AR RE S (63,264) (5,056)

(389,431) (127,287)
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Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position

31 December 2014

HEMBIKAR
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2014 2013
—F—MfF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B sE FExT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KME 16 1,192,028 187,568
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERE 17 15,494 15,975
Goodwill HES 18 16,135 1581185
Intangible assets | EE 19 57,176 66,431
Interests in joint ventures REEDLEZ#ER 20 876,132 =
Investment in an associate REERE ZIKE 21 = -
Deposit paid for acquisition of land W i 2 BATE] & 22 - 99,880
Total non-current assets SEMEBEEMAE 2,156,965 444,989

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories eSS 23 61,631 65,423
Properties under development BRPME 24 1,578,803 658,434
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 51 E & H Ath fE U IR 25 427,229 137,456
Tax recoverable Al B 7 IR 2,284 -
Restricted cash SRR S 26 10,658 -
Cash and bank balances R4 MIRTTHE S 26 1,655,667 265,956
Total current assets mBEBERAE 3,736,272 1,127,269

CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables BT E 5508 Rk E A FE T 3RIA 27 389,614 128,475
Deferred revenue R S 28 84 256
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings £t 8 iR717 R E b g & 30 89,676 97,222
Due to the ultimate holding company NP S e NI O] 31 - 370,009
Due to a related company FEA A A B3R 32 - 123,273
Finance lease payables ENmERE 34 66,091 =
Tax payables BT = 3,236
Total current liabilities mE B ERE 545,465 722,471
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 3,190,807 404,798
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & ERABERE 5,347,772 849,787
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2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b FET FAT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2B ERABAERE 5,347,772 849,787
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Due to a non-controlling interest JES IR R RE RS A 33 598,826 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIABE 36 6,280 8,281
Finance lease payables ENRERE 34 231,580 =
Total non-current liabilities JEmBAaERE 836,686 8,281
Net assets BEFE 4,511,086 841,506
EQUITY i
Share capital R& AR 37 186,963 94,443
Reserves e 3,724,169 674,041
Equity attributable to owners RATHEE AELER
of the Company 3,911,132 768,484
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 599,954 73,022
Total equity B 4,511,086 841,506
Yang Zhihui Ng Kwok Fai
neEe REE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EE



67

ERERERERAR

—E-MEFR

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity
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FEERE IR

BE-_Z-—NFE+-A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAFENER
Convertible
bond Non-cash Non- Non-
Share  Contributed equity  Translation share option ~distributable Other ~ Accumulated controlling
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests
ERES #88 RAAR
BEEE  HAR%  EHRE  ENEE  BRERE @i FERER
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
T TEL THL TAL TAL T T
(note g
(Hita)
A1 January 2013 R-E-ZF-f-8 191,002 88,679 - - 11,029 - 2552 - (39,244) 264018 8,078 332,09
Loss for the year EREE = - - - - - - N (YA T I YA TY) (G050 (142.197)
Other comprehensive ncome/{loss) EEEpRTRE/
forthe year: (BR):
Exchange diferences on BERNERHELL
ranslation of foreign operations ERER - - - - 14,916 - - - - 14916 4] 14910
Total comprehensive loss fo the year FRATEEEE - - - = 14916 = = - (lenun (12228) (06 (127.287)
Issue of convertile bonds EUakES - - - 86,607 - - - - - 86,697 - 86,697
Issue of new shares upon conversonof AT AR ERE
the convertiole bonds IR0 310) 75,343 561,304 - (86,697) - - - - - 550,000 - 550,000
Transfer of crecitarising from the BEERERL
captlreduction i reaton to BAHRAEL,
e capftal reorganisation EEEEE 37a) (171,902 - 171,902 - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2013 and RZZ-=%12R
1 January 2014 =t-Bk
“3-mE-f-H 94,443 650,033 17,9024 - 25,945 -+ 2,552 - (176,301)* 768,484 73,022 841,506
Logsfor the year ZEEE = = = = = = = - (e (2867 (48979 (342,656)
Other comprehensive income/oss) EREEf2ENE/
forthe year: (B8):
Exchange diferences on AERNERIMEEL
ranglation of foreign operations ExzE - - - - (106,767) - - - - (106,767) (14285 (121,052
Deconsoldaton of subsicaries Bl NN = = = = uam = = = = 21 S uan
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAAFRLE - - - - (32,490 - - - (03677 (326,167) (63264)  (389,431)
Deemed disposal of partial interests in WEELENBAA
asubsidiary PoiEs 4 - - - - - - - 7,253 - 7,283 590,196 597,449
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue: BRMRETERR 37() 47,01 1,369,419 - - - - - - - 146640 - 1416640
Direct expenses n relaton of BEERZERRR
rights issue - (14,374) - - - - - - - (14,374) - (14.374)
Issue of orcinary shares by EARRRERT
share subscriptions Lak 31d) 30,700 1,236,300 - - - - - - - 1,267,000 - 1,267,000
Issue of ordnary sheres n relation HKEREAR
o acquistion of a subsidary LAk 37) 14,599 13728 - - - - - - - 788,322 o 788,322
Fouity-seted shre option RiEEERRER
arangements - - - - - 3974 - - - 3974 - 3974
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-|E
tZB=1-H 186,963 4,015,101 171,902 - (6,545)* 3974 2,552 7,253* (470,088 3,911,182 599,954 4,511,086
* These reserve amounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ~— * ZERGEHROERGEUBRRARAZZEHERED
HK$3,724,169,000 (2013: HK$674,041,000) in the consolidated statement of 3,724,169,000/&7L(=F — =% : 674,041,000/&7T) °
financial position.
Notes: B -
(a) Contributed surplus of the Group was arisen from the Company’s capital  (a) AEBZHBARBRTDERRAR_ZE—=FHATA
reorganisation on 19 April 2013. RETZEARBHEMES ©
(o)  The non-distributable reserve of the Group mainly represents statutory reserve (b)) ~ ANEBZ TR Sk FHE EHR P EARLME ([
requirement that the foreign investment enterprises appropriated 10% of the profit 1DERREREINECEZEAERERTE - A8
after taxation of the subsidiaries of the Company registered in the People’s Republic PR (TBEEE) M ME AR AR & T
of China (the “PRC”) other than Hong Kong to the non-distributable reserve under 2 10% BIERA D IkiEE - ERFTER 2 SEENZ
the PRC laws and regulations until the transferred amount equals to 50% of the LB R A M E AR Z50% °
registered capital of these PRC subsidiaries.
(©)  The other reserve in an amount of approximately HK$7,253,000 recognised during  (©) FRE R 7,253,000 7T 2 H b E B E &M

the year, represents the difference between the fair value of the consideration
received from share subscription of Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd. and the
carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the partial disposal of 50% of its
equity interest.

RABERARRBRNRBASREZ AFEERDS B
EHB0% BEEIEEEFEZREE I EHE -
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2014 2013
—E—MF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b FET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &£ 2 HERE
Loss before tax B AT EE (344,155) (138,626)
Adjustments for: LRI
Fair value gain on financial asset and RATEERABZZ
liabilities at fair value through profit PHEERBEZ
and loss, net AN EBEREFE 6 (25,645) -
Interest income FEMKA 6 (11,478) (198)
Gain on deemed disposal of WRAVEL S B QA
subsidiaries pdl & 7 (20,422) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz WEs 6 = (79)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 59,000 -
Impairment of trade and other FEME 5 RRIE I E At FE WK IE
receivables, net VENIEREE] 9 8,313 525
Finance costs B TS PR AR 8 20,369 95,529
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEfHTH & IR 9 398 403
Amortisation of intangible assets A 9 8,333 8,423
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEMEEZ
equipment e 9 34,864 12,335
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BMERXEZ
plant and equipment &8 9 1,113 147
Non-cash share option expenses JEIR B IR 9 3,974 =
(265,336) (21,537)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL,(Em) 2,243 (5,415)
Increase in properties under development BERPYEILN (910,067) (65,120)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other U E 5 7RI8 % H A fE U kB
receivables w3 ) 222,364 (60,132)
Increase in trade FEE 5 508 R H AL FE T FUIR
and other payables b))l 215,394 9,207
Increase in restricted cash PR 3R & 10 (10,658) -
Decrease in deferred revenue EEWR SR (172) (541)
Cash used in operations CEFTARSE (746,232) (143,538)
Interest received B HFIE 11,478 198
Interest paid [=EEESS (30,671) (5,484)
PRC profits tax paid A AR B FAS 3 (6,079) (840)
Net cash flows used in operating activities REXBHRAR RS FHE (771,504) (149,664)
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Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-—NF+-A=+—HBLFE
2013
=4
Notes HK$'000
s FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZBZHESRKE
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEME  WEKXEEE
equipment (note) (B &E) (936,914) (63,559)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEVE  BEEXEEE
property, plant and equipment FRS50R 292 1,256
Deposit paid for acquisition of land Wi+ > BEMET & = (99,880)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from acquisition WBEERABZRE (R,
of assets and liabilities MAERE 39 (226,329) 151
Cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HERBARIZRERA = 9
Cash outflow from deemed disposal WRIELEHNB AR Z
of subsidiaries Rent 40 (50,599) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEBAR S REFE (1,213,550) (151,929)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @EZBHZHERE
Proceed from issue of share capital BATRR AN 2 PR3 3R 37 2,683,640 =
Loan from the ultimate holding company KEZRERATIZER 223,991 370,009
Repayment of finance lease payables BEENMERE (33,046) -
Repayment of loan from ultimate BEREHKERATZER
holding company (594,000) -
Loan from non-controlling interests KB ES 2 ER 552,149 -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ FE#2 ik i 25+ & 597,449 =
Repayment from joint ventures HEDEREN 125,000 -
Share issue expenses 81T (14,374) =
Loan (repayment to)/from a related company R BRI A T2 B3,
(MREEEE A AR R (123,273) 128,273
Repayment to loan from government EERFER = (7,056)
New bank and other borrowings FERIT RN EMER 102,251 110,030
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRRTRAMES (108,591) (89,656)
Net cash flows from financing activities METEASEESREF5E 3,411,196 506,600
NET INCREASE IN CASH ReERBESSEYEMER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,426,142 205,007
Cash and cash equivalents at REVZRE MRS EEY
beginning of the year 265,956 49,259
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREE) o B TR
changes, net (36,431) 11,690
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZHERRESEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR AND (LB RBITEBRRT)
REPRESENTED BY CASH AND BANK
BALANCES 1,655,667 265,956

Note: During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of — [fizf : FR - NEERYE  BELRREITLHELAEL
property, plant and equipment with a total capital value at the inception of the lease - RAR R 2 B RN4EE A % 41,496,0008 7T
of approximately HK$41,496,000 (2013: Nil). —E—=FE) -
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Landing International Development Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
continued in Bermuda, and its shares of which are listed on The Main
Board of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The registered office of the
Company is located at Suites 5801-04, 58th Floor, Two International
Finance Centre, No. 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) was principally engaged in design, manufacturing and sales
of the light-emitting diode (“LED”) (the “Lighting Business”);
property development (the “Property Development”); development
and operation of the integrated resort (the “Integrated Resort
Development”); and casino business carried under a casino license
(the “Casino Business”).

In the preparation of the Group’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014, the directors of the Company have given
careful consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light of (i)
the Group incurred a loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$293,677,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014; and (i) as at 31 December 2014, the Group has
capital commitments of approximately HK$655,887,000, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of approximately HK$89,676,000,
amount due to a non-controlling interest of approximately
HK$598,826,000 and finance lease payables of approximately
HK$297,671,000. Based on the cash flow projections prepared by
the management with reference to the current business and financing
plans of the Group, the directors consider the Group will be able to
finance its future working capital and fulffill its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis.

—E-ME+ZA=+—H

ERBEERERARAR(XQT])ARFAES
HEFMK IR EREFE AR AR
HBRMREBEBH I ER LT« RARIZF
MREEMAESTIREMASHER S/
b —Hi58185801-04 = -

FA - ARAREKBAR (5 [FEE])
TERERFTREHZE X SR (LED])
(THRAEK ) MEZER((NERR]) &
REEEGEERN ((REEBRNBR])
RIREBE ISR BB R ([ ERRE]) -

ROBE_E—NF+_A=1+—HLF
F; LK%IE:EEZK Al B ABLEE
#9293,677,0007 7T ¢ K(i)R ZF — M F
+TZA=+—H8 AEEBBHEEAREY
655,887,000/ 7T * T BIRIT M HMEEL
89,676,000/% 7T * F& 7 FE 4% A% # 25 SR 1B 49
598,826,000/% 7t & FE 1 @t & HH & 4
297,671,000/ 7T EREAEBEHE-ZF
—ME+ A=+ BLEFEZHBRE
B AN RIEBEREE EAKEZ KRR
PEEMN - RBEEBEELLEALERS
EBERBETERREZRESRETEN - E
ERE AEEKENA BRI KRIRER%
BEES MRS E RN ETAERAT -

R MBHRRCIRSECEEERE -
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These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to the
preparation of financial statements, which for this financial year and
the comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain of financial instruments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (jii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

—ZEZ-WmE+=-A=+—H

EVBBRREERES SIS ((FSB
B AR ) EH BB HREENE
BB MEER | BIEMBEEMERE
AR HESHEAN((EBSTED ) k2
BILEBLAREHEIER - thSHER
KIMEBTEBLARUEH B RBERETBRRK 2
BREERT  BREESQFEN(F622F)
MR A1 B 76 =87 & FTH % 1K B £ 930 [ BR
BREZ] ZBEERRELHE  RAMK
FERLEHABATATHEN (FE32E) #E
WA BETHRITAELAAFBETTEIN
WEMERRIIZELRANERE - BB

EEAESN  WEFBRERIIABT(ET])
P - FTEEBEHNEAAZSSET TS -

FEREEE
HEVBBRREEARRLENBARRE
—ENEFT A=t HULEFEZMBER
* o B AR 2B EHKRTIIREARRBHER
ERBPRA RS BRFE - WEAR
ZEEAAEEMSHER R BREAR
B Y- BHEHGEAREEEZENERILZA
ALk

HAHEEE S LM EEREER BARE
A ARIEERES D h - AMEEEE
B RS ARNIRELY - ERAKEKER
AIARXGZEERAE  #x - WA FAX
RBERENFRA KRB BB -

=B RIERET T XHE QR R
M=—TAESERRER —HKSHELRE
B AEESEMFHERTEHNREY
R-MBARZMAREZEHORERE
THIHE) - HEERH AR

MAEBEREH —KMB AR 2= H 4% - 8l
HERITEROZMBARZEE (BIEFE
REE (i) E IR 2 BRI E & (i) R
RN RETE R Z5 0 U RERO)FT
WREBZ NTEE  ((EAREREZ AT
(BB K (iii) (2] A L B 25 P EE A 2 B RRSE
Ao RTRAEMEEMK SRR 2 NEBENL
HoALBEEHERBEEEXAERR
EZHAREEFEEMEFHEEBRIARYE
St Al o
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3.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and a new
interpretation for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 39

HK(FRIC)-Int 21

Amendment to
HKFRS 2 included
in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to
HKFRS 3 included
in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to
HKFRS 13 included
in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to
HKFRS 1 included
in Annual
improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Investment Entities

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

Levies

Definition of Vesting Condltion’

Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a

Business Combination’

Short-term Receivables and Payables

Meaning of Effective HKFRSs

i Effective from 1 July 2014

& & M B IR R M
—EF-mFE+=A=+—A

3.2

BB REHRINE

REBERARFRE M BEHERREKBATZ
HRIERTER R — TR 2R -

BB IR AR
F£105% - BAUK
REERIFE 1258 &

FREHERIE 275
(ZF——F)2E7T

ERGTERE 325
ZAEET
ERGFTERIE 3958
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5 (BRI BHRE
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Except for the amendment to HKFRS 1 which is only relevant to an
entity’s first HKFRS financial statements, the nature and the impact of
each amendment and interpretation is described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss rather than
consolidated them. Consequential amendments were made to
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS
12 also set out the disclosure requirements for investment
entities. The amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Company does not qualify as an investment entity as
defined in HKFRS 10.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to the
requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting in situations
where over-the-counter derivatives designated in hedging
relationships are directly or indirectly, novated to a central
counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations, or the
introduction of laws or regulations. For continuance of hedge
accounting under this exception, all of the following criteria
must be met: () the novations must arise as a consequence of
laws or regulations, or the introduction of laws or regulations; (ii)
the parties to the hedging instrument agree that one or more
clearing counterparties replace their original counterparty to
become the new counterparty to each of the parties; and (iii)
the novations do not result in changes to the terms of the
original derivative other than changes directly attributable to the
change in counterparty to achieve clearing. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group has not
novated any derivatives during the current and prior years.

—ZEZ-WmE+=-A=+—H

BREEMBRELENE 1R ZEFTERE K
ERCZENEEMBREERMBEREM
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BERETkREBEZHEERZEMR RN

BBV BRELENE 10K 2ERT B
REERBIZER YRNAREER
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2HEEEEEHEAFR(=-F
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©)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a
levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs. The interpretation also clarifies that
a levy liability is accrued progressively only if the activity that
triggers payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance
with the relevant legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that
no liability should be recognised before the specified minimum
threshold is reached. The interpretation has had no impact on
the Group as the Group applied, in prior years, the recognition
principles under HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets which for the levies incurred by the Group
are consistent with the requirements of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21.

The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are
vesting conditions, including (i) a performance condition must
contain a service condition, (i) a performance target must be
met while the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a
performance target may relate to the operations or activities of
an entity, or to those of another entity in the same group; (iv) a
performance condition may be a market or non-market
condition; and (v) if the counterparty, regardless of the reason,
ceases to provide service during the vesting period, the service
condition is not satisfied. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group.

The HKFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a business
combination that are not classified as equity should be
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
whether or not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS
39. The amendment has had no impact on the Group.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-term receivables
and payables with no stated interest rates can be measured at
invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.
The amendment has had no impact on the Group.

—E—NE+=A=+—H
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3.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

3.3 ERENZHEI REETTEEM

BREEALREEASIRBIE
T TR BHE

795 8 R D L B B T 4R R FE P A R E A
{845 A2 BT RGBS AT BB Mk

statements. U
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative 2 BRGHENS 1R 2B REAE?
HKAS 1
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments * BRIBREENEIR HHBITA
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor ERUBEREENEI0FR REZLEBERNA
HKFRS 10 and and its Associate or Joint Venture 2 BB e RERE 8% HEERERZ
HKAS 28 (2011) (ZB——5F) 2 BELELRA?
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation BEUBREERNE0S . REEE: EFLS
HKFRS 10, Exception 2 EEMBREENE2RR  AKHE?
HKFRS 12 and ERGERE 285
HKAS 28 (2011) (ZB——F) 2T
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint BRI HREERE 15 WEBAREERZ
HKFRS 11 Operations 2 ZIEF] B B
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts © BB REERE 145 HEEEKF®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ° BRRBHREERE 155 KEEPEAW S
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation ERGERE10HNES EEFUEICHER
HKAS 16 and Amortisation 2 SHERFE8F BT b5y
HKAS 38
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants 2 BERSHENE16HRES EE EXREY?
HKAS 16 and SEPERIE M BT
HKAS 41
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions BRGHENE 10N 2BI]  EHENGE ES
HKAS 19 #
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 2 BRGTEAE 275 BUHBEHERZ
HKAS 27 (2011) (ZB——5F) 2 %2
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs —Z-TFEE-T-—-F 2B BN BRE
2010-2012 Cycle B FENE BRI 2 (EET
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs “E—52-%-=F 2B BN BRE
2011-2013 Cycle B FENE R 2 EET
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs 2 —E-CFE-T-QF 2B BN BRE
2012-2014 Cycle Bz FEE A2 57T

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

! MNoZE—NELA—ARZRFABZFEHMR

£

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 2 RZT—RF—A—Bsz%RBZFEHRA
£

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 8 RZT—tF— A — B2 %R FEHRH
£

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 4 MR- N\FE—A—BkZzEREzEEE™
£

© Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial 5 HR T RNF— A — B 2ERENREFE

statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) will
affect the presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2015. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these changes.
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further encourage
companies to apply professional judgement in determining what
information to disclose in their financial statements. For example, the
amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of
financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information
can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining where and in what order information is
presented in the financial disclosures.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further information
about the impact will be available nearer the implementation date of
the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016.
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The narrow-scope amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011) introduce clarifications to the requirements when
accounting for investment entities. The amendments also provide
relief in particular circumstances, which will reduce the costs of
applying the standards.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer of an interest
in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business must apply the relevant principles for business
combinations in HKFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a
previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the
acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while
joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been
added to HKFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not apply
when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party. The
amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a
joint operation and the acquisition of any additional interests in the
same joint operation. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide
a more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle in HKAS
16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the use
of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in
very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are
not expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Except
for those described in note 3.2, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2015. None of the amendments are
expected to have a significant financial impact on the Group. Details
of the amendment most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity must disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segments that have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the segments are similar. The
amendments also clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets to
total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies that a management
entity (i.e., an entity that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to related party disclosure
requirements. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.
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The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle issued in
January 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2015. None
of the amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the amendments are as follows:

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that joint arrangements
but not joint ventures are outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the
scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is to be
applied prospectively.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies that the portfolio
exception in HKFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets
and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of
HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as applicable. The amendment is to be applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS
13 was initially applied.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued in
October 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016. None
of the amendments are expected to have a significant financial impact
on the Group. Details of the amendments are as follows:

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or
incorporated by cross reference between the interim financial
statements and wherever they are included within the interim financial
report. The amendments also specify that the information within the
interim financial report must be available to users on the same terms
as the interim financial statements and at the same time.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associate and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associate and joint ventures is included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associate or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associate or joint ventures.

The results of associate and joint ventures are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments in associate
and joint ventures are treated as non-current assets and are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants on the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, properties
under development, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 50 years
Leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Furnitures, fixtures 18% to 20%
and office equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%

Alircraft 5%
Plant, machinery 4% to 18%
and equipment

Gaming equipment and 20%
accessories
Structure 33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings or assets under
construction which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value on the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences with finite lives are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 8 to 18 years.

LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and comprise land costs, construction costs,
borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes in fair value
presented as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. These
net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for asseparate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred
to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowing, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to the ultimate holding company, a related company
and non-controlling interests, obligations under finance lease and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position,
net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for
an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a
long term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated
to the conversion option that is recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c)  casino revenues are measured by the aggregate net difference
between gaming wins and losses, with liabilities recognised for
funds deposited by customers before gaming play occurs and
for chips in customers’ possession.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value on the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any
award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in the PRC
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in South
Korea are required to participate in a defined contribution is a pension
plan under which the South Korea subsidiaries pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when a employee has rendered service.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
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FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates on the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates on the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are set out below:

RECOGNITION AND ALLOCATION OF CONSTRUCTION COST ON
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under
development during the construction stage and will be transferred to
completed properties held for sale upon completion. Apportionment
of these costs will be recognised in the statement of profit or loss
upon the recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the final
settlement of the development costs and other costs relating to the
sale of the properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the development
projects into phases. Specific costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost allocation is
different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

NET REALISABLE VALUE OF INVENTORIES

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the inventories at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether the inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 3.4. Management
estimates the net realisable value based on current market situation
and historical experience of manufacturing and selling products of
similar nature. Any change in the assumptions would increase or
decrease the amount of inventories write down or the related reversals
of write down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net asset
value.

IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of the customers and other
debtors and the current market condition. The directors of the
Company reassess the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

M EERE (BERI)

REREPRR - AEEFERTERRBR
AV EEHRRE FHERZET
BEESFETRENN - TREMEBZREE
PR EETRENH - MATRBETE
FREEAEEZNE - B EERETR
BAR - WEEXHEELEN 2 REEBR
BE AU E © 5 (AR P EER SRR R
ERBEMETZRSERE)  ERH
BREME - A FEERLEXNKTIRFEBREE
RIRZEFREHER 5 2 PSRBT B
EMERLEEEZ RFTKRAGE - 5T EE
REER EEEANGEEIRTELSE
Uz AKRRERENERAB 2R
o MR EZEFRERELHE -

FEZUEIRNFE

AEEREREHMRRAFEREE - UIR
BHESAMBE S BMREEFERE UK
REAEEFEIREEINR - BEERE
HEERHEWERUZER 2 BATHRR
BELBRGAIRRFE RR2EMED
7% & 12 hn sk A B 1 R 17 B OB SR R
BEO 28 YWHEAEE EEFE -

FEW B2 53R 1E K H fth FE M Rk IR B
AREERRE IR 2 AR B 2 FFHE L
JE W B 5 308 I B A R UK IR (F I BUE © it
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For management purpose, the Group currently has four reportable
operating segments that operate different business activities. They are
managed separately and providing different products or services
which require different marketing strategies.

The principal activities of each reportable segment are as follows:

(@  Lighting Business;

(o)  Property Development;

(c) Integrated Resort Development; and

(d)  Casino Business

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss, which is a measure of
adjusted loss before tax. The adjusted loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s loss before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, gains on deemed disposal of subsidiaries,
share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associate as well as
head office and corporate income and expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, tax recoverable,
interests in joint ventures, investment in an associate and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, obligations under finance
lease, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to
the ultimate holding company, non-controlling interest and related
company, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

—ZEZ-WmE+=-A=+—H

REEEMME  AKERALELETR
EBZAIBEREDE - RFKEDHEHE
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TRITI5 R -

BEAREDI 2 EEEBMOT ¢
@ EREFES
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© HEERNER: R

d) BEEB
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SLE IR B K R IR 4 B EIRE - FFE D A6
KA DRARED MERGH - EtE
BEAEHEER - FFERRAIKEHRER
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FMEWA - BBERA - R ELEHB QA
ek nARERERBEARREER
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FEETREEERERE -

DEHBETEEEANE BMEHEERTE
£ FERTREMEE  BENKKERD
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Annual Report 2014

HFEMBHRRME
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5.

LENEBEE )
B=E—T—-NE+-—HA=+—HILEE

Integrated
Lighting Property Resort Casino
Business  Development  Development Business Total
GRERN
FES NERE BB BRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thz THx TR TR ThR
Segment revenue: AHlE
Sales to external customers FSNDER P #E 201,951 - - 21,367 223,318
Segment results PREE (76,441) (8,369) (94,972) (20,261) (200,043)
Interest income BN 11,478
Gains on deemed disposal of subsidiaries HRELENBLR 2K 20,422
Corporate and other unallocated expenses, net A& R E A DB L FE (155,643)
Finance costs SRR (20,369)
Share of profits and losses of: PMEBR
Joint ventures REME =
Associate BE AT =
Loss before tax BiAIEE (344,155)
Income tax credt FiEhise 1,499
Loss for the year FEER (342,656)
Segment assets PHEE 393,637 924,573 1,277,592 - 2,595,802
Reconciliation: -
Corporate and other unallocated assets REARAMKRAEEE 3,297,435
Total assets BESE 5,808,237
Segment liabilities PUERE 92,614 147,954 126,629 - 367,197
Reconciliation; -
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties REREM KRS RERE 1,014,954
Total liabilities RfEEE 1,382,151
Other segment information: At AHER
Depreciation and amortisation WE RS 12,178 254 6,180 192 18,804
Write-clown of inventories to net MAFEZERFE
realisable value 10,805 - - - 10,805
Impairment of trade and other receivables, net  FEUE 5B R £t
R E S 8,313 = = = 8,313
Capital expenditure* BEAREY 13,294 344 575,787 61,571 650,996
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 XHEZENIEE®

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 BE-E—=%1+-A=+—BHILEE
Lighting Property
Business Development Total
FRAA TS MEER 45T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FAT
Segment revenue: oI -
Sales to external customers MINBEFHE 181,075 = 181,075
Segment results DEBEE (7,604) (12,526) (20,130)
Interest income FEUA 198
Corporate and other unallocated A R E AR S BL R % 58
expenses, net (23,165)
Finance costs B TS PR AR (95,529)
Loss before tax FrEERIES1E (138,626)
Income tax expense SRR (3,571)
Loss for the year FEEE (142,197)
Segment assets DEREE 453,113 842,459 1,295,572
Reconciliation: AR -
Corporate and other unallocated assets ‘A &) & KAt AR D A& 7 276,686
Total assets BERE 1,572,258
Segment liabilities AHEE 76,501 42,210 118,711
Reconciliation: HER -
Corporate and other unallocated AR REMRDEEE
liabilities 612,041
Total liabilities BEREE 730,752
Other segment information: B EER :
Depreciation and amortisation WE N 10,522 1,426 11,948
Write-down of inventories to net WoRFEZR ] 218 FE
realisable value 7,110 = 7,110
Impairment of trade and FEUEE 5 300E I B At
other receivables, net FEWFIBRIE F5E 286 239 525
Capital expenditure* B 3,927 632,767 636,694
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment * BARAXBIEREYME  BEREHEUAKRER

and prepaid land lease payments and including assets from the acquisition of THAERE  UREKEEERA GRS
assets and liabilities. B
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
(@  Revenue from external customers

HGEMBmRME
—E-mE+=-A=+—8H

5 HENIEE W
@ KEIBES WS

2014 2013

—E—-mEF —E—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH&T

Mainland China AR B At 115,602 101,885
Other countries R ETE 107,716 79,190
223,318 181,075

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

PA bz BB T AR IR 3 P P BE 4 [ 5
4o

b) FRBEE

2014 2013

—B-mE —T=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FHT

Hong Kong B8 439,157 5,939
Mainland China A 5 (A b 154,194 155,716
South Korea [Eaf 614,171 41,888
1,207,522 203,543

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, intangible assets,
interests in joint ventures, investment in an associate and
deposit paid for acquisition of land.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the years ended 31 December 2014, one of the external
customer who each contributed over 10% of the Group’s total
revenue (2013: None). The total revenue earned from the customer
amounted to approximately HK$24,108,000 (2013: Nil).

NERRBEEEMNIREBEEME
VE(TBERE BVEE NA¥
eEZER RBERARZRENK
BruwzefMaI2)5H -

BFREEERZ2EH
HE-_Z-—NFE+-_A=+—RHIFE —
BN B IEAEE RS BEBIB10% (=
T—=F:8) - RAZTPZKSBENE
24,108,000/ T (ZFE—=4 : ) -
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows:

HEMTBmRME
—Z-WE+=-A=+—8

6. Hitblg A Rliim
AEEE MM A BRI -

2014 2013

—Z—mF ZZT—=F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FAT

Bank interest income RITFEHA 11,478 198

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB ARz W - 75

Government grant (note) RsEEEACIES) 1,159 2,106
Fair value gain on financial liabilities BRAFEBFABR W BEEE

at FVTPL, net Z AT EENFEE 25,645 -

Others Hith 2,204 2,216

40,486 4,595

Note: There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to government
grant.

GAINS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The gains on deemed disposal of interests in subsidiaries during the
year of approximately HK$20,422,000 arose from the dilution of the
Group’s effective equity interest in Magical Gains Holdings Limited
(“Magical Gains”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Magical Gains
Group”) from 100% to 50% following the issuance of 100 new
ordinary shares of Magical Gains to a subscriber on 23 December
2014.

Therefore, Magical Gains Group ceased to be subsidiaries and
became joint ventures of the Group. Further details of the
deconsolidation of subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the

FieE : BIER BB 2 RBITIRF AR EE -

7. #HIREHEMBATIZIE
RAFE  HRELEWNE A RER 2 W
#920,422,000 7% 7T I AR E R A BIERE
RAR([&HB))REMBAR (5iE [FHE
B 2EERER _ZT—NFt+_A=-+=
AR — & REAZEIT100F 8 2 5 L mk
£ 1 100% #58 Z= 50% i E A& ©

Bt - FHEEKILEAHERR - MA/K
SEAZEDE - ERARLKHNBRRSS
ARZE-TFBERGA VB RRME

consolidated financial statements. 40 °
FINANCE COSTS 8. HIFSRE
2014 2013
= ik —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaxT FHET
Interests on: ATF&EZFE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 63,066 11,619
Less: Interest capitalised W BAREFE (56,979) (3,228)
6,087 8,391
Loan from government ETE = 441
Finance lease payables ENmERE 14,282 -
Imputed interest on convertible bonds R EFEE RS = 86,697
20,369 95,529
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LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. R¥iAIESIE
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B EE FER FAT
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at AEBEBRFRIEEE 0RR T3
after charging/(crediting): RIF -
Auditor’s remuneration % EREM BN & 1,506 658
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERR 114,553 136,261
Depreciation e 16 34,864 12,335
Foreign exchange differences, net R AR 4,945 994
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments** TEfH R & FRIE S 5 17 398 403
Amortisation of intangible assets*™* R AR 19 8,333 8,423
Minimum lease payments under operating THREFIEEHE
leases of land and buildings EHTERERE 14,796 6,030
Impairment of trade and other receivables, net UK E 5 2118 K& £ fE U 2518
DERERE -] 8,313 525
Write-down of inventories to WoRFEEA R FE"
net realisable value* 10,805 7,110
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEKEE
equipment** ZEBE 1,113 147
Research and development costs** BB R AN ** 13,564 10,410
Employee benefits expenses BERFIFEZ
(excluding directors’ remuneration): (TBRIEEEEHM)
Wages and salaries TEREGE 83,683 37,168
Pension scheme contributions RINSFT B 10,146 6,863
Non-cash share option expenses IEIR SRR S 3,974 -
Less: Amount capitalised o BRNMbe R (28,353) -
69,450 44,031
* Included in “cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit * FIAGEBmRZ [HEKA]A -
or loss.
3 Included in “administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated * FIAGREBm A [T A -

statement of profit or loss.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules RAFE BEEEHAERIFAERAA
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong ([BRFr])BH EmRARESRREGI(F
Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) and section 78 of Schedule 11 to the 622 %) K 11 F 781K 2 RATE A A AIE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to BI(E32F)F161ERECESMeMT

section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
and benefit
in kind,
pension
scheme
contribution
e 2HR
BYFIE
Bike
wE HE- L5 ot
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHT FHT FHT
2014 —E-mE
Executive directors: HITEE
Yang Zhihui (“Mr. Yang’) PEE(PEkE]) 7,467 9,352 16,819
Kong Fanbo (“Mr. Kong”) (note i) FLER ([7L £ D) (M aED 172 - 172
Zhou Xueyu (“Ms. Zhou") AE=((Axzt]) 1,573 198 1,771
Xu Ning (‘Ms Xu”) By (ML) 1,573 497 2,070
Ren Shunying (Mr. Ren’) (note i) RS ([ 54D (I EEi) 62 16 78
Lee SiuWoo (notes il and iv) ZEE S A (i R iv) 327 - 327
Ng Kwok Fai (‘Mr Ng’) (note v) RENEL A ([REE]D (FIFEY) 4,150 14,200 18,350
15,324 24,263 39,587
Non-executive directors: FMITEE :
Fok Ho Yin, Thomas (“Mr. Fok”) EEA(TBEE]D) 153 - 153
Chen Lei (“Mr. Chen”) Rz (REE]D 180 - 180
Zhang Xiaolan (‘Ms. Zhang”) EXH([Ext]) 180 - 180
513 - 513

15,837 24,263 40,100
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME W
Salaries,
allowances
and benefit
in kind,
pension
scheme
Fees contribution Total
e ER
EMFE
BARE
e FTEIfR Gk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
2013 —E-=fF
Executive directors: BITES:
Hu Jun (note vi) HAE (f3Evi) 145 = 145
Zhang Ying (note vi) R (HEEvi) 145 - 145
Li Li (note vii) F R (Mt vii) 181 - 181
Zhang Yang (note vi) 5F (BT EEvi) 145 - 145
Jiang Zhigjan (note vi) Bk (M aEvi) - - -
Mr. Yang (note vii) {5 A (Y 3 viii) 1,084 2414 3,498
Mr. Kong (note ix) L% A (B EEix) 285 908 1,193
Ms. Zhou (note ix) Az (FitaEix) 285 - 285
Mr. Xu (note x) Rt (PHeEx) 178 - 178
Mr. Ren (note x) 54 (BfaEx) 178 = 178
2,626 3,322 5,948
Non-executive directors: EHTES
Mr. Fok ErAE 100 = 100
Ng Hoi Yue (note vii) R8T (P vii) 75 - 75
Chiang Chi Kin, Stephen (note vi) B R (FTaE vii) 75 - 75
Mr. Chen (note X) BRI 4 (BaEx) 45 = 45
Ms. Zhang (note x) E+ (fiEx) 45 - 45
340 - 340
2,966 3,322 6,288
Notes: BaE -
[0) Resigned on 27 March 2014 [0) RZT—ME=A =+ HEHTE
(i) Resigned on 27 January 2014 (ii) R-ZE—NF—A=-+tAHE
(i) Appointed on 20 January 2014 (i) R-ZE—NF—A=-+BHEZE
(v)  Resigned on 4 July 2014 vy RZZT—HFtAMNBEE
) Appointed on 22 April 2014 v) RIE—NFNA -+ —HEZE
(vl Resigned on 9 August 2013 V) RZZT—=FN\ANBEE
(vi)  Resigned on 2 October 2013 (vi) REZZE—=F+AZHEHT
(vii)  Appointed on 19 July 2013 yil)y R-T—=FtAt+LBEZRE
(ix)  Appointed on 9 August 2013 (ix) RZZE—=FNANBEZT
x) Appointed on 2 October 2013 (x) REZZE—=F+A=-HEZF
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed HEZT-MFER_FT—=FF+=ZA=+—

to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

ALEE BEFHEEHEXRENELE
ATz 25k o
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. AERaHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included 4 directors RAFE  AémaFEERRNRES(Z
(2013: 4 directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 10 T—=F:NEEFR) BEZHeFEHR
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining 1 (2013: R EXKFE10 RAEE  Efp—R(=F
1) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of —=: —HA)EeFEE WIHFARRESHK
the Company are as follows: THBE) 2 BaT
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZMREMFE 3,333 1,634
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIHR 11 15
3,344 1,549
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose WHEEZGRFEEZFHEENTUT
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: #7l

Number of employees

BEAH
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T 2 2,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 8 7T 1 -
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12.

INCOME TAX

Annual Report 2014

SEMBHRME

—=—

12.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made during the
year ended 31 December 2014 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that year (2013: Nil).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

mE+=A=+—H

FriaH

(E-E-NFEF—A=+—HIFE#§
ERFBNEBIELEE  RESAKER
ZFEEYEREBELETAERVEN (=
T=F 8 HtRZERBENZ
MBI RARBEERBREEMERRZRITH
KEtHE -

2014 2013
—E—mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
PRC Enterprise FEE
Income Tax Frig i
— Current — BIHH 559 943
— Underprovision in prior years — BEFERETE - 303
559 1,246
Deferred (note 36) IEAE (P52 36) (2,058) 2,325
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year FEMBEOER) FXEE (1,499) 3,571

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rates of Hong Kong, where the Company is

headquartered, is as follows:

ERARBRHEEMRARRERMAELE
BEEREAELHRAER) XHZH
BRanR -

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaxT FHET
Loss before tax BRFL AT AR (344,155) (138,626)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% REBNEHTE16.5%
sHE 1A (56,785) (22,873)
Difference in tax rates of subsidiaries operating EHMRARELE 2
in other jurisdictions MEARREZERE (6,203) (1,603)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR ER 62,072 23,237
Income not subject to tax BARBIA (15,703) -
Tax losses not recognised RAER T IAE 18 17,285 2,958
Underprovision in respect of prior years BAEFERETR = 303
Others EHAth (2,165) 1,649
Income tax (credit)/expense FTs i (&) i (1,499) 3,571
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13.

14.

15.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 included a loss of
approximately HK$77,313,000 (2013: HK$108,687,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 46).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

Loss BB
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, used in the basic and diluted

loss per share calculation

HEMTBmRME
—Z-WE+=-A=+—8

13.

14.

15.

AATHEE ANELEE
ARNRESHAAREEE S —NF+=
A=+—BHLFEHFREBBEEEFALR
AIBF TSR 2 BB 477,313,000 T (=&
— =4 : 108,687,000/87T) (HI:E 46) °

e
BE RN ERE TR T
—=E+-B=t—ALEEIRS -

??E%E@ﬁﬁﬁk%ﬁﬁﬁ
518
SREARIEBEZEHEEIER

RN ESRERREEER
AAREBESHAEARGER

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
293,677 137,147

Number of shares

BB EE
2013
—=—=
‘000
T
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUGTEERERREEEE 2
in issue during the year used in the basic and FECBETEBRMNEFIH
diluted loss per share calculation as adjusted (BN =—Z=—mE_—AMMA
for rights issue which was completed TERZ I EH TR
on 4 February 2014 (2013: as adjusted (Z2—=%F: B3R —NF
for the rights issue which was completed on ZAMBSER 2 R IEL )
4 February 2014) 16,714,397 4,744,371

In respect of the diluted loss per share amounts presented, no
adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2014 as the impact of the
share options outstanding during the year had either no dilutive effect
or an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.

22 BREFEESENS - ARER
MARITEZBREH I EREREES
BWABEENERAREEYEEE Al
WEHEE T —NF+_A=1+—HILF
B2V BREXBESRBIIEL AR -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SEMBHRME

—2-Dm&Et+=-A=+-R

16. % - BERRiE

Furniture, Plant, Gaming
fixtures machinery  equipment
Freghold Leasehold  and office Motor and and Construction
land Buildings  improvements  equipment vehicles Aircraft  equipment  accessories Structure  in progress Total
pvE: | BENE G RER BE B8 AYRER
1 B3 BB BOERE HE it ki B ) ERIR a3t
HKS000 HKS1000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§'000 HKS000 HKS1000
TR Tin Tin TER TEL T T TR T TR Tin
31 December 2014 “§-ME+-A=1-A
At 31 December 2013 and RoB-=#+-f=1-A
at 1 January 2014: RR=Z2-mE-A-R:
Cost A& 23,020 92,520 4784 6,144 4,759 - 87,294 - - - 218521
Accumuiated depreciaton ZithE - (5.240) (383) 1953) (1919 - (21,508) - - - (30,959)
Net caming amount EmSE 2800 47,280 4451 4,191 2840 5 65,786 - s - 18
At January 2014, net of accumuted depreciaion R=F-ME-A-R ARE:HE B0 87,280 4451 4,101 2800 - 65,786 - - - 187,568
Addtions e 420844 - 445 20,789 19,846 426,531 12170 37,901 8,349 178,092 1,124,967
Acquiiton of assets and fiabilties (note 39) WEEERAR (M) - - - 2,083 - - - - - - 2,083
Disposals it - S (206) (140) (252 S S (117) o o (1405)
Deconsoldation o subsidiaries nofe 40) KIHEMBATEA AR (Wi 40) = = = (1912 = S S (35,739 S (13,182 (56,839)
Depreciation provided for the year (note 9) ERAERE(HO) = 4276) 15%) (2468) (3479) (12440) (9848) (131) (687) - (34,964)
Transfers &3 - 18,156 - 2707 - o o - - 2086 N
Bxchange redignment Eige (16,249 (2220 o (2139) (176) o (817) (1,308) (282 (6,307) (20.489)
At 31 Decamber 2014, netof acoumulted RZE-ME+-A=1-B-
depreciion MREHITE 4160 98,940 301 17,115 18779 44091 67,291 - 7,30 18,740 1192028
At 31 December 2014 RW-T-ME+-A=1-8:
Cost A 427,624 108,159 4,762 21,402 23,766 426,531 97,746 - 8,041 137,139 1,265,767
Aocumuted depreckton 248 - 0219 (1,691) (6287) (4065 (240 (30459 o (661) c 63739
Net camying amount EE5E 427,621 98,940 301 17,115 18,780 414,091 67,291 - 7,380 137,139 1,192,028
31 December 2013 Z§-=E+ZAZ1-R
At31 December 2012 and R-E--&+-A=1-A
at 1 January 2013: R=E-=%-A-B:
Cost s - 74,589 6 2539 2,400 - 83,361 - - 183 163,148
Accumuiated depreciation ZitihE - 413 29 (1,362) (468) - (13.301) - - - (19,292)
Net caying amount RESE - 70457 47 111 1932 - 70,060 - - 183 143856
At 1 January 2013, net accumulated R-2-=f-A-R-
depreciation ABE:HE - 70457 4 1 1982 - 70,060 = = 183 143856
Addtions HE 23020 17,690 4784 3387 3209 - 1,465 - - - 53,555
Acquison of assefs end iabilfes 1ote 39 iEgERaE(MiE) = - - 502 39 - - - - - 811
Disposes e - - ) (149) [1.207) s . s = = (1408
Depreciaton provided ERERE(O)
durng te year e 9 = 459 339 4 [1026) = 1799 = = = (12,33)
Transfers &2 - 4 - - - - 143 - - (183 -
Bxchange redignment ERH2 - 1552 - ? @) - 191 - - - 3084
At 31 December 2013, net of WoB-=E+-A=t+-H'
acoumueted depreciion MR EHFE 2800 87,280 4451 4191 280 = 8,785 = = - s
At31 December 201 KoB-=Ftzf=t-R:
Cost [t 23020 92520 4784 6,144 4759 - 87,204 - - - 218,521
Accumuiated depreciation ZithE - (5,240) (339 1959 (1919 o (21,508) o = o (30,953
Net carmying amount BESE 23020 87,280 4451 4191 2,840 - 65,786 - - - 187,568
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The net carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed assets held under
finance lease included in the amount of aircraft at 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately HK$414,090,000 (2013: Nil).
As at 31 December 2014, certain property, plant and equipment with
a net carrying amount of the Group’s of approximately
HK$116,292,000 (2013: HK$26,711,000) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

HEMTBmRME
—Z-WE+=-A=+—8

16.

17.

Y% - BERRE @
N-ZT—NME+-A=+—8 A&£EE
EREREMPFRETEEZR@FEYD
414,090,000 L (—ZE—=4F : E)B T A
et 2 S8 o

N-T—NE+-A=+—8 A&EEER
FEA 116,292,000 T (=Z T — = F :
26,711,00087L) 2 & T - BEMFE
ERASEER  —RIRITHE (MI5E30) 1F
REE

T HEERIE

2014 2013
—E-mE —z—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEHEE 16,343

Acquisition of assets and liabilities (note 39) WEEEK &R (HE39) - 590,086

Transfer to properties under development HEBERRPYE - (590,086)

Amortisation during the year (note 9) FEEH (M) (398) (403)

Exchange realignment ME A2 296 182

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZKEE 15,873 16,122
Current portion included in trade and other RENEL D (G AR E 53 E &

receivables H b FEUFRIR) (379) (147)

Non-current portion IERENE 15,494 15,975

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held under a

long term lease.

HE T NP EA - WARBENEE -

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s prepaid lease payments with a
net carrying amount of approximately HK$15,873,000 (2013:
HK$16,122,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 30).

R-Z—NE+-_f=+—H K&EEKEE
FEH A158730008 T(=ZF — = F:
16,122,000 L) 2 A EREE A S
EER 2 —MRIRITRVE (EH R (FT5E30) o
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18. GOODWILL 18. HE

Goodwill of approximately HK$203,392,000 was related to the 7 & #9203,392,000 7% 7T B2 47 & Ace Winner
acquisition of Ace Winner Holdings Limited (“Ace Winner”) and its Holdings Limited ([ Ace Winner]) & H ] &
subsidiaries. Ace Winner is an investment holding company with an NEIEE > Ace Winner BIX &1L AT » &
indirect 69.44% equity interest, held through its wholly-owned BE2EMBARIFENEIRERRAFME
subsidiary, China Opto Investments Limited, in the issued share BERAIHFEBHELAERRAR(CIHREB])
capital of Jiangsu Wenrun Optoelectronic Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu ZEBITIRAG.44% B - THIBEEEE
Wenrun”). Jiangsu Wenrun is principally engaged in the Lighting WERBAAZER - O 18 E4203,392,000%
Business. Goodwill of approximately HK$203,392,000 was allocated THEERAXEBREELSN((REELE
to the cash-generating unit (the “CGU”) for the Lighting Business. B]) -

At 1 January 2013:

HK$’000
THET

R_FT—=%F—H—B:

Cost [DEN 203,392
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (128,257)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 75,135

Cost at 1 January and 31 December 2013,
net of accumulated impairment

R-B—=Ff—-A—ARt+-A=t+—H
A - kR REHRVE 75,135

At 31 December 2013:

R-B—=F+-A=+—8:

Cost B AR 203,392
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (128,257)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 75,135

Cost at 1 January 2014, net of accumulated

R-F—OF—A—HZRA - MEERTRE

impairment 75,135
Impairment during the year FERE (59,000)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December RZZE—OF+ A=+ —HZERAKERFE

2014 16,135
At 31 December 2014: RZE—NE+=-_A=+—H:

Cost D 203,392

Accumulated impairment RiRE (187,257)

Net carrying amount BREFE 16,135
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18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BE )
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL R iR (B R
Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the BREGEHES HEIEZERAERR
lighting products CGU for the purpose of impairment testing. SEABMN - AT /J%TE/EUET
The recoverable amount of the lighting products CGU has been REAERBESEABMN 2 ] KBS ETIRE
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow EREEREEAMEZ AFHPHEERARS
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period REBAGEZCREEET - BeREE
approved by senior management. The key assumptions used in the BBz E2/ET -

cash flow projections are as follows:

— Average gross margins of 23% (2013: 28%) and average - HERAEHEMNER2B8%(ZF—=
revenue growth rate of 10% (2013: 14%) to reflect the 28%) REHWHE LR EIOB(ZE
deterioration of the Lighting Business with reference to the —=F 1 14%) + ARMERAEEN B
average performance in the previous years and the expected FFEFAHRBERRABITER
returns within the relevant industry; BAEIR

—  Discount rate of 10.46% (2013: 12.55%) is used with reference — HAKZ2EZHBrENTLRAAZ
to the current market data for the relevant industry and RITTIHEIREE 2 AR E10.46% (=
comparable companies; and E—=F :1255%) : &

—  Terminal growth rate of 3.20% (2013: 3.22%) is used with - KA i«@é%ﬂiﬁiqﬂlmﬂgﬂ?ﬂ@
reference to Mainland China’s average inflation rate in the past fREEFE 2 HBZEREI20% (=

five years. — =4 :3.22%) °
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19.

SEMBHRME

—=—

mE+=—A=+—A

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BILEE
Casino
Patents  Trademarks license Total
=5 [ R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
31 December 2014 —E-ME+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2014, RZE—E—B—BZKA
net of accumulated B R E Y
amortisation 37,008 29,423 - 66,431
Acquisition of assets and W& E & & (& (FI3E39)
liabilities (note 39) - - 872,299 872,299
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BRI B ARG E AR
(note 40) (FfsE40) - - (815,696) (815,696)
Amortisation provided FIEH RS
during the year (note 9) (Pf5E9) (2,806) (5,527) - (8,333)
Exchange realignment BEE 3¢, 3 B (514) (408) (56,603) (57,525)
At 31 December 2014 R-T-mF+-A=+—H 33,688 23,488 - 57,176
At 31 December 2014: R-ZE—NFE+=-A=+—0:
Cost B AR 44,213 44,213 = 88,426
Accumulated amortisation ERg (10,525) (20,725) - (31,250)
Net carrying amount HREFE 33,688 23,488 = 57,176
31 December 2013 —E-—=54+—-A=+-H
At 1 January 2013: RZZT—=%—HA—H:
Cost (BN 43,540 43,540 - 87,080
Accumulated amortisation Rty (4,838) (9,522) - (14,360)
Net carrying amount AREFHE 38,702 34,018 - 72,720
Cost at 1 January 2013, R_E—=F—A—HZEA"
net of accumulated B R
amortisation 38,702 34,018 - 72,720
Amortisation provided FEE MRS
during the year (note 9) B (2,837) (5,586) = (8,423)
Exchange realignment B 5 A 1,143 991 = 2,134
At 31 December 2013 NZE—=F+=-F=1+—H 37,008 29,423 - 66,431
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=F+-A=1+—8:
Cost AR 44,835 44,835 - 89,670
Accumulated amortisation 25T (7,827) (15,412) = (23,239)
Net carrying amount BREFE 37,008 29,423 = 66,431

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s patents with a net carrying
amount of approximately HK$33,688,000 (2013: HK$37,008,000)

were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the

Group (note 30).

R-ZZE—MWE+-_A=+—8 ' X&EE
BRI F{E 495 33,688,000/ T (T — =4 :
37,008,000 7T) 2 EFE A EEER 2
—RERTRRE B KR (FTEES0) »
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REELRFZHER
2014
—ZE—MF
HK$’000
FTHET
Share of net assets PMEEEFE =
Loan to joint ventures e ERERBECER 876,132
876,132
The loan to joint ventures is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed AAMDEIEM S B AEEKT . 8 R
terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, this loan is EETFESRH - EER A EESSWES
considered as part of the Company’s net investments in joint AATIRALNE ZIEFHEEHR 25 o
ventures.
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures are as follows: AEBEBZAELEFBOT
Percentage of
Place of ER:pae
Particulars of registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name issued shares and business interest power sharing activities
BRIT M REE
8 R E EBwE  BEEER EL 25 TEER
Direct Indirect
EE HE
Magical Gains*™ 200 ordinary  British Virgin Island 50 = 50 50 Investment holding
shares  (“BVI")/Hong Kong
Blch 200K L@k EBRERHS REER
([EBELZ#HE])
/EE
Ultra Matrix 50,000 ordinary BVI/Hong Kong = 50 50 50 Investment holding
International Limited* shares
50,000k L@ HBRELES/ FE REER
Grand Express 1 ordinary share Hong Kong/ = 50 50 50  Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong
BEXBEERAR 1 IR E B BB/ BE REER
Grand Express Korea 1,685,379 South Korea/ - 50 50 50 Casino business
Company Limited* ordinary shares South Korea
1,685,379 fR & iR mE/ R B ES

* Not audited by Zenith CPA Limited

- AEHL ST EBRER AR RZ
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20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

& & M B IR R M
—EF-mFE+=A=+—A

20. NMEBLEZHELR )

Magical Gains is directly held by the Company and all other joint AN EXFRIREE - AEBARREEREA
ventures as disclosed above are wholly-owned by Magical Gains. MATEEMEECXBBTHEERS -
Magical Gains Group carried Casino Business in South Korea, which HFHEEREENEELER  BRALE
is considered a material joint venture of the Group, and is accounted BeEREELE  WEEDEAR-

for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of TRHAAITBDEER S TEER 2 EMZFEIE
Magical Gains Group adjusted for any differences in accounting LA PEERBE - WHGRE B HRE
policies and recorded to the carrying amount in the consolidated REABREE °

financial statements.

2014

—E-mEFE

HK$’000

FHET

Cash and cash equivalents HeERRESEEY 843,001
Other current assets HEMRBEE 70,523
Current assets MENEE 913,524
Non-current assets FERBEE 879,326

Financial liabilities excluding trade and

MBaE  TEEENESKER

other payables H fth fE T 5RIE (1,838,808)
Other current liabilities HEMRBaE -
Current liabilities EAE (1,838,808)

Non-current financial liabilities, excluding trade and

FRBUBAR  TRERNEZFTEK

other payables and provisions B FE A SRIE A R A5 (7,251)
Non-current liabilities EmBIAE (7,251)
Net liabilities BEFHE (53,209)

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

Group’s share of net assets and carrying amount of
the joint ventures

AEERAECR 2 EEHR

NEE 2 EERELD 50
AEEDEEECEZEEFEREEE

Revenue

Interest income

Depreciation and amortisation

Interest expenses

Tax

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Lhas -
ABSCON -
IrE K =
M EFX -
A =
FREMN N RS LR =
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21. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. REIZEATIZIRE
2014
—ZE—MF
HK$’000
FTHET
Share of net assets DMEEESFE -
Particulars of the Group’s associate are as follows: AEE 2B ENTFBEHT
Percentage of
BAt
Place of Indirect
Particulars of registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name issued shares and business interest power sharing activity
BRIT AR & Gk
a8 R A3 E B350 EEEER RER AEER TEEK
Autumnglow PTE Limited* 2 ordinary  Singapore/Singapore 50 50 50 Inactive
(‘Autumnglow”) shares
2RRE R i) 1) 1 Emex

* Not audited by Zenith CPA Limited * RISHE SRV BB AR D A EZ
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21. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. REEATZ2H/E @)
The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a wholly- REBREE QA 2 RIETVEBARBET
owned subsidiary of the Company. —RE2EWBARRESE -
Autumnglow is inactive and is accounted for using the equity method. Autumnglow E 42 2 - WIRHEZIAALR ©
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of T 3R 7 B9 Autumnglow 5t € 5H IR 2 (e =
Autumnglow adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and RIEHAR 2B ERRE - WREE I’
recorded to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial WMARGCAKRME ©
statements.
2014
—E-NfF
HK$°000
FEx
Current and net liabilities mEEEFE ()
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in an associate: REBE RN T2 =R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEE 2 HEHRELD 50
Group’s share of net assets and carrying amount of AEBDHBHERNRZEEFER
an associate BREE =
Revenue Y -
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FERERANEEEmKEIEZE -
22. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND 22. KLz EfETE

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered into an
agreement with a third party for the acquisition of the said land for an
aggregate cash consideration of KRW136,000,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$998,803,000). The deposit of KRW13,600,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$99,880,000) were paid upon signing
the agreement. The land would be used for the intended investment
for the development, management and operation of certain real
estate, entertainment and hotel and hospitality project. During the
year, the acquisition was completed and the deposit was transferred
to property, plant and equipment and properties under development.

HEZZE—=F+A=+—HLEFE &
ey 0 Sl e b L VAR =
35 4 {8 & 136,000,000,000 #2 B (A& R4
998,803,000/ 7T.) © ] & 13,600,000,000 %
(FEE 7 4799,880,00078 7T ) TYR 5 7] hhad
R e THASRERE  ERREEST
EHE IR% - BAERFFEE Z2H TR
EoNAFE - WEEEEEK  milebE
EEEYE  BERIEMBEERPYE -
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23. INVENTORIES 23. &8

2014 2013
—E—-mEF =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Raw materials R 9,076 13,935
Work in progress ERm 10,897 11,926
Finished goods BIRK Th 41,658 39,562
61,631 65,423

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24. BEEPYE
2014 2013
—EF-QmE —EF-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Properties under development, at cost BRAPYE LR 1,578,803 658,434

The analysis of carrying value of land included in properties for or
under development is as follows:

APARTHERABERTYEZ S HEERED
T

2014 2013
—Z2—NF —Z=—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
South Korea Mg

Freehold land IKAEREL M 403,078 -

Mainland China o A 3
Long-term lease — leases of over 50 years REATHA) — B0 F 2L 90,094 84,540
493,172 84,540

The amount of properties under development expected to be
completed and recovered after more than one year is approximately
HK$404,071,000 (2013: HK$84,540,000).

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s properties under development
with a net carrying value of approximately HK$513,141,000 was
pledged to secure the amount due to a related company (note 32).

Further particulars of the Group’s major properties under development
are set out on page 161 of the annual report.

BB —FRERRKE 2 ERT S
4 47 A404,071,000 T( =% — =
84,540,000557T)

R-B—=F+-"A=+—0 A£EEX
EEXA513,141,0008 T2 B REFYED
TP REEE A B BB /E R R (HE32) ©

AEEBEZBRRIPMEZE—SFHBIHNTF
WRE161 8 °



124  Landing International Development Limited Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEMEIRRME
31 December 2014 —E—MME+=-H=+—AH

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. FEWE ZYFRIA R H At EUG R IE

2014 2013

—E—F —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Trade receivables due from third parties ERE=HESHE 125,265 100,729
Impairment A (33,223) (28,536)
92,042 72,193

Other receivables H fth U GRIE 26,512 12,864
Prepayments AT FRIA 9,283 2,607
Deposits Hica 299,392 49,792
335,187 65,263

Total trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 508 K E Ath FE U R IR 42 58 427,229 137,456

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBEEFZESGRERREE
BEPRIN HEP —RARENR - FEH
—®A—EA EREFPALERE=EA -
BREFPUREBZREER - AEERER
R EREEEUE  NEEREEE
Rk - B HAsEErm SR ERA B E B -

ER AR ASEZEREESFTRERED
HEFER BRIEEEAKTEERAR -
REEY Epl KB E 5 RS SRR H E A
R mSETEM MR EERERE - BKES

FIATEE S »
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. FEWEE 53R IE X H 1t FEU AR IE (50)

RBRERRIEZHZARRINBREBEEERZY 2
JEWE ZFTERERSITAOT

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is

as follows:
2014 2013
—ET-F T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Within 30 days 30HA 24,035 19,060
31 to 60 days 31£260H 16,746 12,177
61 to 90 days 612 90H 14,707 8,723
Over 90 days BiE90 H 36,554 32,233
92,042 72,193

FEWE B R RIERBESNT

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:
2014 2013
—F-mE —T=

HK$°000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

At 1 January R—HA—H 28,536 27,728
Impairment losses recognised BEHERBEEE 5,082 -
Impairment losses reversed B EREEE = (289)
Exchange realignment b A% (395) 1,097
At 31 December R+-—A=+—~8H 33,223 28,536
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25,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of approximately
HK$33,223,000 (2013: HK$28,536,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of approximately HK$40,486,000 (2013:
HK$30,513,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties or were in default in both interest and/or
principal payments and only a portion of receivables is expected to be
recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

FEMBRERMEE
—ZEZ-WmE+=-A=+—H

25.

FEW &8 57k 18 K H {th FEUG FRIE ()
ATA LW E 55 IB 2 REREAERB
B EIE 5 5RIE 2 #1# 49 83,223,000 7 7T
(ZZ— =% : 28,536,000 7T ) i [ {F 1 B
# A1 2 BRI {E#)40,486,0008 T (— T —=
£ 30,513,000/ 7T) °

&5 2 76k (B & Mo B2 55 3R 7R 18 8 U 745 IR Bt =
FER /AN REBBA2EFER  BH
ERIEIE R e e

W IR RRE (T B Bl S B B E) 2 B
BIFARER DI

2014 2013

—E—F =4

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHBT FET

Neither past due nor impaired K@ MR RE 25,283 19,025
Less than 1 month past due wmHE DR —EA 8,240 16,538
1 to 3 months past due wE—= =18 A 6,169 7,351
Over 3 months past due EHAEA=EA 52,350 29,279
92,042 72,193

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

None of the other receivables, prepayments and deposits is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no history of
default.

BE AR 280 #7580l B2 B MK R B B B R
L RENHEFLBEHM -

8 BRME MR (B 2 FE M R BB R AN R D
BRFZBIURFER - RIBEELR &
REEERLTES RS MULEFHEBRDHE
BRAUZENE  BARREZRRBEN
B E R IE LR E B -

BiEEMREYR BNFERFT2E B
SORMME © AT A Ll # 8k 2 B 15 A B B 3 S A
HiRDER 2 FRWRIR A 7Y
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26.

27.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$1,655,667,000, with approximately
HK$27,444,000 and HK$1,139,328,000 held in RMB and Korean
Won respectively and the remaining held in Hong Kong dollar (2013:
HK$265,956,000, with approximately HK$75,419,000 and
HK$187,486,000 held in RMB and Korean Won respectively). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group are required to
place in designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale
proceeds of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of
the related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases
of construction materials and payments of the construction fees of the
relevant property projects when approval from relevant local
government authorities is obtained. At 31 December 2014, such
guarantee deposits amounted to approximately HK$10,658,000
(2013: Nil).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

6 M E IR R M
—F-mFE+=A=+—A

26.

27.

RERREEEY

RBEHR  AEBZRITERIRSOA
1,655,667,0007% 7T © & H 4927,444,000 7%
7T} 1,139,328,000% 7T 7 5l LA A R ¥& & 72
BE#HE BEIANBIEE(ZE—=F:
265,956,000/ 7T & A #775,419,0007% 7T
12187,486,000 7T 9 5l A A R ¥ K 82 B 15
B AREBETIERLBRAHME
R IE A B A INEE B EE 1) - A R AEEE - B
ERMEERERTE AREEESAERE
EITINER FEBZBITEARE AR
g .

PR S RIBES A RT RN EET 2T
BFIE S - BITLHITARTLMIER
S AREREY R -

BIEFBER AR - AEEEEE TEERH
RRBEFERNETRITERS  (EARBYE
BRIERES - BEMEBE BN EER
HE - RSETRARBERBYEEE 22
EMRETNREER N _T—NF+=
A=+—H  B#@ERZRE4 /510,658,000
BT(CE—=F:&)-

FE{+E S FRIA R L fth FE 4 SRR IE

2014 2013

—E—-MNEF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables due to third parties ERE=FES5E 110,973 83,693
Accruals JEZTER 118,329 10,924
Deposits received BUET € 142,027 5,119
Other payables E At T FIE 18,285 28,739
278,641 44,782
389,614 128,475
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27.

28.

29.

& & M B IR R M
—EF-mFE+=A=+—A

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 27. EFEBSRIEREMERTRIE )
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting RBEARZEZAM2Y| 2 BN E SHFIB
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRER AT T -
2014 2013
—E—mE —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Within 30 days 30HA 71,313 19,415
31 to 60 days 31£260H 12,460 10,723
61 to 90 days 61290H 9,393 6,180
Over 90 days HB3iEo0 H 17,807 47,375
110,973 83,693
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled R E SHIBTER - —RIEMFB0ED
with credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days. BZiEEHEE -
DEFERRED REVENUE 28. BIEER
The deferred revenue arises as a result of the benefit received from a BENm T HEBEEZSE—MNFR =T —=F
government loan bearing interest of 0.3% (2013: 0.3%) per annum FTZA=ZT—HLEFEUAFENEOIE(ZE
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. —=F:03E)FEZBNERER 2=
FTEAE -
LOAN FROM GOVERNMENT 29. BIFFER

On 10 December 2010, Jiangsu Wenrun received a loan with 0.3%
interest-bearing of RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,122,000) from the PRC local government to finance the
research and development of technology of LED equipment over a
three-year period. The loan is repayable in full at the end of that three-
year period. Using market interest rates for an equivalent loan of
6.88%, the fair value of the loan is estimated at approximately
HK$5,853,000 on initial recognition. The difference of approximately
HK$1,269,000 between the gross proceeds and the fair value of the
loan is the benefit derived from the loan with low interest and is
recognised as deferred revenue (note 28).

RZTE—ZEF+=-A+H I&HBEEST
B & 1 BT — 2 B EA R 66,000,000 7T (4R
ER#7,122,0007 7)) AFME0IEFT EZ
B UAHRIEDRERMREEES A
HI=4F o 2 B FBN = F R4 RS REHE
B RBASER MG X688 ETH
ZERRULEREZ AT EEGTOA
5,853,000/ 87T °c TS RIBRBEHZERZ
NFEBER 2 = E#1,269,00078 7T T 3% K
BEEREAZFZ  WEERBET KM
T28) -
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS  30. 3t B iR{TREMMES
2014 2013
—2-DF s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Bank loans, secured IRITER - AR 89,676 87,095
Loans from licensed money lender, unsecured REFEREAZER - EBER - 10,127
Bank and other borrowings repayable on REXRSBER—FRNEEZIRIT
demand or within one year REAMEE 89,676 97,222
Notes: B
(@) As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of the Group’s (@) RIT—NFER-_T—=F+_A=+—8"
bank and other borrowings approximate to their fair value. AEEZRITREMEEROEERRDERE
=

31.

32.

33.

(b) Bank loans are secured by the Group’s certain of property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments and intangible assets. The effective
interest rates ranging from 5.75% to 6.90% (2013: 6.00% to 7.13%) per
annum. All bank loans are denominated in RMB.

(c) For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had entered into loan
agreements with a licensed money lender which were unsecured, bore
interest at fixed rates of 12% per annum and have been fully settled during
the year.

DUE TO THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to the ultimate holding company was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand and was fully repaid during
the year.

DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

The amount due to a related company, Anhui Landing Holding Group
Limited, which was controlled by Mr. Yang Zhihui, the chairman and
an executive director of the Company.

The amount was secured by the Group’s properties under
development with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$513,141,000 (note 24), bore interest at fixed rate of 13% per
annum and was fully repaid during the year.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The amount due to a non-controlling interest is unsecured, carrying
interest at 5% per annum and repayable in 2019.

31.

32.

33.

() RATEREAERETYE  BEREKE B
NHREFERELEERER - BEREFNENT
575EE6.0E(=ZF—=%F :6.00EZE7.13
E) - FTERITEFREUAARESIE -

© HBEZF-=FT-A=+—HLHFE F&%
B8R — 2R REA L ERIHE - AEEK
REER  REEFMNE12EFSLDRAF
REBEE -

Bt REERATRIE
ENREERARRARMER - 281K
BRMLE - WENAFEERMLE -

FE& £ BRI 2 B R IE
FERT AR A MR WE R RE M AR A AR
EE A A R E R TS ODE RIS -

BREFIERASERAEL A513,141,000
B2 B EPYE (BE24) (EER - RET
FRERAZEA L - WERARFERBREE -

FE{+ {2 R i e SR IE

FEN IR R R R BRI - HEF K5
EEtE - WER-T—NEFEE -
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34.

35.

HGEMBmRME
—E-mE+=-A=+—8H

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 34. FEfIRUERAE
2014
—E-—NF
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease lease
payment payment
BIEHEE BIEHEE
E | MIEHE
HKD HKD
BT BT
Within one year —FR 82,740 66,091
More than one year HBiE—F 259,032 231,580
Total minimum lease payment RIEAERBERE 341,772 297,671
Future finance charge A& H (44,101)
Total net finance lease payables FET B E T & RIB R 297,671
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARBEESDD (66,091)
Non-current portion ERBNE S 231,580
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 35. TJRIREH

On 7 June 2013, the Company issued the three-year zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “2013 Convertible Bonds”) at par with a
nominal value of HK$550,000,000 to Hong Han Limited (‘Hong
Han”), the controlling shareholder of the Company as at the
acquisition date, in relation to the acquisition of 100% equity interests
of Double Earn Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Double Earn Group”). The acquisition was completed on 7 June
2013 and details of the acquisition were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 25 March 2013. The 2013 Convertible Bonds are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The 2013 Convertible Bonds
entitle the holder to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time before their maturity at a conversion price of HK$0.073
per ordinary share. If the bonds had not been converted, they would
be redeemed on maturity date at par.

RZT—=ZFXAtH AARRKEESE
EHRERLAARENE R A(HE
[fEBEE]) 2MBRE  REERNRERR
AR EE]  RUE B AR D RIERR
) B{TME{E A 550,000,000 8 T2 ZFHE
BB ER=E—Z=ZFa2RE
%) WEEEER -_ZE—=FXA+tHE%
B MBEBEEFBERARAGDBAHACZT
——FZA-+HABAZBRAEE - —F
—=FABRREFUETE ZF—=

AR ERE T 255 AR R B Al pE
RrZERESRLBER0.073B T LB AL
ANRIEAER - MEFREAMSDRERR
AlRE BIZEEER -
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35.

FEMBmRMEE
—Z-mE+ZA=+—H

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 35. TIRERESF (@)
The Company had right to redeem, in whole or in part, the 2013 ARBEENRETARHREEZR A LEME
Convertible Bonds, at any time commencing from the issue date to N BERREFFEABRE T DR CEEE
maturity date, by giving the bondholder at least seven business days’ AEX@AM  BREERERTEZZE—=
prior notice at the redemption amount, which was 100% of the AR EH A SR 2 100% @ f& Bl 2 25k 2B
principal amount of the outstanding 2013 Convertible Bonds. The DB —=FAHRRES - EH/FEATAR
bondholder may, at any time during the period commencing from the BTEHREERH A LR BREE
issue date, and expiring on the maturity date, convert the bonds into FEBP AR DT LB o
ordinary shares of the Company.
The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the issuance BEFHY 2 AT EERNEITR RS RE
date using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar bond 2 REEHFFA 2 HRTSFEEL G -
without a conversion options. The residual amount is assigned as the TSRS AR I D WA AR R #ER o
equity component and is included in shareholders’ equity.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the 2013 Convertible HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE R
Bonds with a nominal value of HK$550,000,000 were fully converted T = RRE ST SRR TS
into 7,534,247,000 ordinary shares by the exercise of conversion FF » E1E550,000,000/8 L2 —E— =41
rights attached to the 2013 Convertible Bonds. Bk E S B R B % 5 7,534,247,000 i &
g o
The summarised information of the 2013 Convertible Bonds are set ZE-=FBRBREFZERBERS N
out as follows: Nk
2013
Convertible
Bonds
—E-=F
AR ES
Issuance date ZE1THHE 7 June 2013
—E—=FAtH
Maturity date ZIHAE HA 5 June 2016
—E—-RFAAH
Principal amount PN ) HK$550,000,000 78 7T
Coupon rate EB R Zero
Conversion price per ordinary share (HK$) ST B EIBRE (ET) HK$0.073 77T
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The 2013 Convertible Bonds was bifurcated into a liability component
(including the amount of closely-related early redemption option held
by the Company) and an equity component for accounting purpose.
The following table summaries the measurements in the principal
amounts, liability and equity components of the Group’s 2013

Convertible Bonds during the year ended 31 December 2013:

Issuance of 2013
Convertible Bonds

Interest expense (note 8)

Transfer to share capital and
share premium accounts
upon conversion of
ordinary shares (note 37(b))

BT -T—=F
R ES

FlB R (fizEs)
BT RREEEE
RS A R B A3k (B B
(Bf7E37(0))

FEMBRRME

—=—

35.

Principal
outstanding
amount

e RA1TBE
rEH
HK$'000
TAET

550,000

(550,000)

mE+=A=+-8

o[RBRESH ()

T CETRRESREHENS AEE
BH (AEARTBELDIEB IREED
BEE)RERDS TEHABE—F
—=F+-A=+-BLEEAEE-T
—CEMARES Y ASE - BB RESS
DTEHERE -

Equity

component

(included

in the

convertible

Liability  bond equity

component reserve)

B

(REA AR

(EEa 5o
SEBS %) st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
463,303 86,697 550,000
86,697 - 86,697
(5650,000) (86,697) (636,697)

At 31 December 2013

R—F—=f+t-A=t—H
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36. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 36. IEXEHIEERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as FRELERBEEEEHWOT :
follows:

Depreciation
allowance Fair value
inexcess adjustments
of related on
depreciation acquisition Others

ERE WRHEAR

BHER ELEZAF
e BEERE Hth #mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET THET TET TAET

At January 2013 RZTZ—=F—H (413) 8,852 (2,445) 5,994

Charged/(credited) to statement RIEZERMG(GEA)

of profit or loss (note 12) (FitE12) 413 (1,977) 3,889 2,325
Exchange realignment I 5 R = (29) (15) (38)
At 31 December 2013 and at RZZE—=F+-FA=1+—H

1 January 2014 M=—ZT—ME—HF—H - 6,852 1,429 8,281

(Credited)/charged to statement RIBEER GHA),/H1k

of profit or loss (note 12) (PfzE12) - (2,083) 25 (2,058)
Exchange realignment P H SR - (1) 58 57
At 31 December 2014 R-E—WFE+=-—A=+—H - 4,768 1,512 6,280
The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$104,760,000 (2013: ANEBARIEREIEA 104,760,0008 7T (= F
HK$703,000) that are available for offsetting against future profits of —=4 : 703,000/ 7T ) Al AR SHE 4 B 18
the companies in which the losses arose, subject to certain tax rules RRAIZRIEF] - WHEFARE B EBAE
of the countries in which the Group operates. Deferred tax asset has BRzETHREHRA - AR EERTH A
not been recognised in respect of these losses as the utilisation of N B ERZEEERREETIEEE

which is uncertain.
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. X
Number of Total
shares value
BB E e
’000 HK$°000
T i FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%F—H—H 5,000,000 500,000
Share subdivision (note a) &5 748 (Fi sk a) 45,000,000 =
At 31 December 2013, 1 January 2014 and R-_ZE—=F+—-_A=+—8 -
31 December 2014 —E-mHF-A—AK
—E—NFE+=ZA=+—H 50,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=%—HF—H 1,910,020 191,002
Transfer of credit arising from the capital BEEARELHZ ERERBATES
reduction in relation to the capital 2R ER (ffitta)
reorganisation (note a) - (171,902)
Issue of new shares upon conversion of R T —=FnRREER
2013 Convertible Notes (note b) BATHEAR D (Pt D) 7,534,247 75,343
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZZE—=F+-_A=+—HK
—Z—F—H—H 9,444,267 94,443
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue (note o) BB ITE R (FiEc) 4,722,133 47,221
Issue of ordinary shares by share subscriptions BB REBRITE B
(note d) (MtzEd) 3,070,000 30,700
Issue of ordinary shares in relation to acquisition U BEE B A B 21T TR AR
of a subsidiary (note e) (FfzEe) 1,459,854 14,599
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—WOFE+=A=+—H 18,696,254 186,963




135 EREBRERARAF —E-MEFR

FEMBHRRME
—Z-WE+=-A=+—8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2014

37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of the movements in the company’s issued share capital
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 is as follows:

37. BE @
BE-_Z—=FK-_FT—MNF+_A=+—
B IF4F AR A B B B 1T BR AN 2 8 B 5 ok 4

Issued and fully paid

BEERITNER

T

Number
of shares
in issue
28T
RHEBE
‘000

T

Issued
capital
28T
-
HK$'000
TET

Share
premium

BHEE
HK$'000
Fibzt

Total

At
HK$'000
THET

At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%—H—H 1,910,020 191,002 88,679 279,681
Transfer of credit arising from EMEARSHEZEREIR

the capital reduction in P4 7 IR

relation to the capital (KfzEa)

reorganisation (note a) - (171,902 - (171,902
Issue of new shares upon conversion Hipna iR EEREITHRG

of the convertible bonds (note b) (P D) 7,534,247 75,343 561,354 636,697
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+-A=+—H

1 January 2014 k=_ZE—NFE—-[—H 9,444,267 94,443 650,033 744,476
Issue of ordinary shares by FRERBTL AR (K3Ec)

rights issue (note c) 4,722,133 47,221 1,369,419 1,416,640
Direct expenses in relation to EHERZEERY

rights issue = = (14,374) (14,374)
Issue of ordinary shares by ERRORERITLERK

share subscriptions (note d) (Ktzxd) 3,070,000 30,700 1,236,300 1,267,000
Issue of ordinary shares in relation to U B AT

acquisition of a subsidiary (note e) BOLBRR(MTe) 1,459,854 14,599 773,728 788,322
At 31 December 2014 M-Z—WNFE+=-A=+—H 18,696,254 186,963 4,015,101 4,202,064
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 18 April 2013, a capital reorganisation was implemented
by the Company which involved:

(i) the reduction in the issued share capital of the Company by
cancellation of paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on each
issued share so that the par value of each issued share has been
reduced from HK$0.1 to HK$0.01;

(i) the subdivision of each authorised but unissued existing share into
ten shares of HK$0.01 each; and

(iii) the transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction of
approximately HK$171,902,000 to the contributed surplus of the
Company.

Further details of which are set out in the Company’s circular dated 25 March
2013.

On 28 June 2013, the Company allotted and issued 1,794,520,547 shares of
HK$0.01 each upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$131,000,000.

On 21 October 2013, the Company allotted and issued 5,253,425,656
shares of HK$0.01 each upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached
to convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$383,500,000.

On 23 October 2013, the Company allotted and issued 465,753,424 shares
of HK$0.01 each upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$34,000,000.

On 24 October 2013, the Company allotted and issued 20,547,945 shares of
HK$0.01 each upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$1,500,000.

On 4 February 2014, the Company completed the rights issue on the basis
of one rights share for every two shares held on the record date.
4,722,133,286 shares were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.30 per
rights share with gross proceeds of approximately HK$1,416,640,000, of
which approximately HK$47,221,000 was credited to share capital and
approximately HK$1,369,419,000 was debited to the share premium
account. Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 20 December 2013, 23 December 2013 and 30 January 2014 and the
Company’s prospectus dated 9 January 2014.

37. BEA&

Bt

FEMBHERME
—EF-mFE+=A=+—A

BEARAR_T—=FMNA+N\BETZK
REFRARGBBZEIAZR - NARCHET
BEARER HK:

0] ERFHEREBTROZERBKRA
0.0987T + BIRAR R B BITRA *
FEEREFHITRMD ZEEHO0.1ETH
WE0.018TT

(ii) BEREERRBFTRAERNIFAER T
R EAXEEO0.01 B T2 D « &

(i) BEAEBBREEZEERERED
171,902,000 B TE B Z AR A ZHMA
Bfh -

ERE—SHBERAATNRHER-_ZT—=F
ZAZTHBZBK -

RZFE—=FR~A=Z1+N\B ' KAAARALE
%8494 131,000,000 7 7T 2 AT #A A% 3= 4% AT B 755
B R R 1T (0 RF A B8 X 3597 1,794,520,547 iR
SR E0.01 8T 2D °

RZE—=F1+A=1+—8 ARARELH
8 4% 383,500,000 7 7T 2 A #2 A% 2= 4% AT BT 75
8 0 A 17 (50 PRF i 3% % %5 17 5,258,425,656 %
SREE0.018TT 2B °

RZT—=F+A=+=0  AREARELE
FA 495 34,000,000 7 7T 2 AT 4R AR IR AR A58
HARE 1T (50 F i B [ 3597 465,753,424 i A%
HEE0.01 BTz’ -

RZT—=F+A=1+MA  ARERELE
FEH4) 41,500,000 7T 2 AT IR AR SR AR AT I A5 8
AR 1T (3 IR AL 3% [0 8417 20,547,945 IR B AR A
B0.01 BT Z IR °

RZZT—NE-AMA - ARRIEN A
BRAEMRKRMHER —RERRND 2 EETK
HA% © 4,722,133,286 % A% 17 12 3R 5 (B B AR
BRI 0308 T ET FIISHRIEREHNA
1,416,640,0007% 7T * H /1 4947,221,0007% 7T
Bt AR - 471,369,419,00078 7T E 5T A
BRADEER - BEFBERNARRBHAZT
—=f+ZA=+H - ZFE—=F+=A
Z+=BERZZT—NF-A=FTHZAENUK
AAFRBHA=T—NFE—ANAZHIRER -
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 1 April 2014, the Company completed the subscription of 810,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.30 per subscription
share to a subscriber. On the same date, the Company completed the
subscriptions of 160,000,000 and 400,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the price of HK$0.40 per subscription share to another two
subscribers respectively. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 April 2014.

On 11 April 2014, the Company completed the subscription of 500,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.40 per subscription
share to a subscriber. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 April 2014.

On 17 June 2014, the Company completed the subscription of 700,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.50 per subscription
share to a subscriber. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 June 2014.

On 8 July 2014, the Company completed the subscription of 500,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.50 per subscription
share to a subscriber. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 July 2014.

On 16 June 2014, the completion of the acquisition of the entire equity
interest of Ultra Matrix International Limited and together with its subsidiaries
(“Ultra Matrix Group”) with an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$875,913,000 was taken place. Upon such completion, 1,459,854,014
ordinary shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.01 each were issued
as the full payment of the consideration for the acquisition. The fair value of
the 1,459,854,014 ordinary shares of the Company, determined using the
closing market price of HK$0.54 per share at the date of completion on 16
June 2014, amounted to approximately HK$788,322,000. Details of which
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 23 March
2014, 3 April 2014 and 16 June 2014 (note 39).

These shares rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.

6 M E IR R M
—F-mFE+=A=+—A

37. BEE @

L
I
P EE -

@

oy

%25

(&)

R-ZZT—NFHEA—A  ARAIEERIEER
RIER0.30B T2 BI&M — B RE AT
810,000,000 R A AR Ei@AR - B A - AR
B IR R RER7 0.408 T 2 BIK 2 BlA
5N & R E A % 17160,000,000% &
400,000,000 IR A2 Al E @Ak - BAFBEHL
ARARIAHA-ZT—NFNA—RAZAL -

R-Z—WFMA+—B - ARRETKIEE
BRREBAXD 0.40 BT 2 (EI& A — R REAETT
500,000,000 fx AR A 7] & @AL - B B IEE RN
AAREBAA-_ZT—MNFNA+—BZRE -

RZT—WEXNATHER ARFIE=KES
%R D 0.50 8 7T 2 (Bi& M — B R AT
700,000,000 AR 7] E @A o B BEHN
AARBHAZTE—MNESA+ERAZASE -

RZZT—MFLANR  RARIBEKILZER
R 0.507 T 2 BI& M — B RE AT
500,000,000 & AR 1 &) & AR - BRAFFIBEE RN
AATBHAE-—ZE—NELAN\NBZAL -

RZZE—NMEXNA+A A A5EER
X % 48 R {8 #9875,913,00058 T 4k & Ultra
Matrix International Limited & [7] £ [ & 2 &)
([Ultra Matrix Group |) % SFR%4E - 5SA 1% -
1,459,854,014 8 A" A 7] B R E E0.01 B T2
TEREBRTANZEIARERE
1,459,854,014 R AN DA EBR 2 A FEETY
BBRONR=ZT—MENA+NBER BB
TEER0.54BTET « 4/4788,322,0007%
T BAHBERARRAA-ZS—NE=A
—+=8 ZE-NFNA=HAR=-T—HF
NATARBZRAENKE (H3E39) o

DEARRBRE L BRER S A Z A RSEH -
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

Under the Scheme adopted 11 June 2010 (the “Share Option
Scheme”), the directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants, including the Company’s directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, and any non-controlling interests in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Share Option Scheme will, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors of
the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price of the share options is determinable by the
directors of the Company, but must be at least the higher of (i) the
SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of
the share options which must be a business day; and (i) the average
SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the SEHK’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer. At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
no share options outstanding under the Scheme and no share options
were granted to the eligible participants.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

ARRREBRESEI((FE))  BERY
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HEEEEE -
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BE  RARERERHKER RS HER
REBER RRARRIMEB R RS ERIE
EhiER 2 AL - BREREIRNEAE B
RERSTFAY  FRIFREHIE -
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38.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

On 15 December 2014, the Company granted share options (the
“Options”) under the share option scheme to certain eligible grantees
(the “Grantees”), which, subject to acceptance by the Grantees,
would enable the Grantees to subscribe for an aggregate of
869,375,807 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company at the exercise price of HK$0.225 per
new share. The Options granted are exercisable commencing from
15 December 2014 to 14 December 2024 (both dates inclusive) (the
“Option Period”). No Options will be exercisable after the expiry of
the Option Period. 65,436,889 Options (the “Accepted Options”)
were accepted by the Grantees during the year ended 31 December
2014.

The following Accepted Options were outstanding under the scheme
during the year.

FEMBHRRME
—Z-WE+=-A=+—8

38.

AERRHEST Bl ()
RZTE—WNF+=A+HHE  XAEREE
AR EI S T ABRARA([EEBEADE
SRR (B ]) - JARAMIRITERE
SR 0.225 8 TLRIE A ££869,375,807
RE AR R A AR EE 0.01 B T 2 A A F]
LR EEFERAERT AR - TR
HEREATR T —NF+-_A+AHE=
Z-ME+ AN B(REEERA) ([B
BB TE - PNEREREERE TS
TEEMERE - BE-_ZT—MNE+ -4
Z+—RHIFE AR AEH65,436,889 17
BRI ((EERBRE]) -

FRTEA TR ARTITE 2 ERRBAAENT -

2014
—E—ImF
Weighted
average Number
exercise price of options
IEE T EE EREHE
HK$
per share ’000
BRER T4
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Accepted during year FRERE N 0.225 65,437
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 0.225 65,437
No Accepted Options were exercised during the year. FRBT B NIRRT T(E -

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the Accepted Options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014

Number of Accepted Options
EEAEREHE

Exercise price*
TEE*
HK$ per share
BRET

’000
T4

65,437 0.225

RS BR W RITE 2 R MR A 2 1T (2
BRITEHROT

—E—-mE
Exercise period

1TES

15 December 2014 to 14 December 2024

—E-ME+-A+EEE-—E-mE+— A+mE

The exercise price of the Options is subject to adjustment in the case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

* AT AR S B ATAT R S AR A AR AN Y ER EL
BEUES - BREZITEEN THAE -
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The fair value of the Accepted Options during the year was
approximately HK$3,974,000 (HK$0.06 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of approximately HK$3,974,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The fair value of Accepted Options during the year was estimated as
at the date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)

Expected life of options (year)

Weight average share price (HK$ per share)

B B (%)

TEHDR 18 (%)

[ BR A 2K (%)
BREERFH(F)

The expected life used in the model has been adjusted based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of Accepted Options was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 65,437,000
Accepted Options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding Accepted Options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
65,437,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$654,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequently on 8 January 2015, as approved by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) and consented by each of
the Grantees, the Company and the Grantees have agreed that the
grant of Options to be cancelled in its entirety. No Grantee has
exercised the said Options prior to such cancellation.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
did not have any Options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

R fE (BB T)

FREEZMEBIE N FEBEL 53,974,000
B (BR0.067TT) MASEREE=T
—E+- A=+ AL FEERERER
3 #93,974,00078 7T °

FABRMBREAFEEINXL R HR
R-EABR R YR RROBEREL
TR B MR o TRFIIFFARE I ABUR

0.00
36.61
1.70
10.00
0.225

BAMBER FHERBEEEY A EE
M TERSRITRRRZZEMERER
st A - FEHR I8 R AR R AR R 2K 1R
RAREZL 2HEF  ET—ERBEBRER -

R BT EIER - B RS I 8
R 2 A T A1

RMEHR ARAFTREREFSIETAE
65,437,000 7 & ¥z 409 B B A 18 AR T o fid 10
RITHE 2 EREPNBRERERZITE AR
AIIRITEAZRET - BB QA RIEINETT
65,437,000 f% & 18 AR & 58 71N #) 654,000 7% 7T
ZREA (FNBREEITRISZAT) ©

HERN-_FT—AF—AN\B BXRAEZF
g ([EEE ) HETKZARARE AR
A N AR AR B2 EBUR R HBAE o 1
HAT - SREAR A BT L A o

RULFH B @ERAEB T - RAFRERE
S EITE TR AT AR 9 ARTTME
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39.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2013

On 7 June 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Double
Earn Group from Hong Han Double Earn Group are engaged in
Property Development in Mainland China.

At the time of acquisition, Double Earn Group had not actively
engaged in any business and accordingly, in the opinion of the
directors, the acquisition of the Double Earn Group does not
constitute a business combination but an acquisition of assets and
liabilities. Details of which are set out in the circular issued by the
Company dated 25 March 2013.

For accounting purpose, the cost of acquisitions of HK$550,000,000
has been allocated to the following identifiable assets and liabilities of
the Double Earn Group as at the date of acquisition as follows:

FEMBmRMEE
—Z-mE+ZA=+—H

39.

WREEERBRE

—E—=%

RZZE—=FAtRH  AEERZERE
EEEE2 AR - FEEENTE AR
EYHRER -

RURER  EEEETEERYEETME
%o Bl EERE WEESEELTE
REBAF  BBRBEERAE BHEHF
BHARABERA-—T—=F=A_+H
B2 e

mesrEMME - UREEAK A 550,000,000 7%
TTERKE RS EZE THEEEE R #5
BENAE:

Notes HK$’000
BoaE FHET
Net asset acquired: FrREE & EFE
Property, plant and equipment N 16 811
Prepaid lease payments FERNHEERE 17 590,086
Other receivables H fth E U R IR 2,177
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHE 151
Other payables H fth FET 5RIE (43,225)
Total identifiable net assets acquired FrUs B8 ml s 5 B E R E 458 550,000
Satisfied by: SENDENE
Issuance of 2013 Convertible Bonds BT —=—F o BRES 35 550,000
Analysis of cash flows in respect of Double FAGESEEZRERESTUT
Earn Group is as follows:
Bank balances and cash acquired with IWEEHT B A RIM e 2 $R1T4ER IR S
the subsidiaries 151
Cash paid BEffIRE =
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FAREESAREREY
included in cash flows used in investing ReERREFEEBMRAFRE
activities 151
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2014

On 9 February 2014 and 21 February 2014, the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement and supplemental agreement,
respectively, with Ms. Xu, the executive director of the Company, for
the acquisition of the entire issued shares of Win Rich Group Limited
(“Win Rich”), which is beneficially owned by Ms. Xu at the total
consideration of approximately HK$141,491,000. Win Rich was
incorporated for the purpose of entering into a purchase agreement
and the leasing agreements with respect to an aircraft.

At the time of acquisition, Win Rich did not actively engage in any
business, accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the acquisition
of the Win Rich does not constitute a business combination but an
acquisition of assets and liabilities.

Details of which were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 February 2014, 21 February 2014 and 7 April 2014
and the circular of the Company dated 12 March 2014.

On 2 April 2014, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a vendor (the “Vendor”), an independent third party,
for the acquisition of the entire issued shares of Ultra Matrix Group at
a consideration of KRW120,000,000,000 by issuing 1,459,854,014
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.6 per share. The fair value
of the said consideration as at the date of the such acquisition is
approximately HK$788,322,000. Ultra Matrix Group was incorporated
for the purpose of holding a casino license in Jeju, South Korea under
the Tourism Promotion Act.

At the time of acquisition, the major assets held by the Ultra Matrix
Group consisted of casino license and certain assets; and
accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the acquisition of the Ultra
Matrix Group does not constitute a business combination but an
acquisition of assets and liabilities.

Details of which were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 23 March 2014, 3 April 2014 and 16 June 2014.

aml =1 -5
RZFE—EMF_ANABER=ZZT—NF=A
Z+—H ARAFREAARNITESRL T
DRFIEBEHZE AT - NEA N
LA EX141,491,0008 TG Z LT ER
BEZBESBEBRAR(BE]) 2B
IR - BsE T B —RRMET LB B
MAE MM o

KRB - BEY BREBKEERER
b EEZRR WEBEALIEREBLA
Bt EBUBEENALE -

BHAFERARBIHHAZS —NF=-AN
H - ZZ—MF-_A=+—BR=ZT—MOF
MA+BEZASEURARRIAHAE=ZS—
F=ZA+=-BAZBHANIEE -

R-ZE—NEMA-RH  ARAREBYE=
HFER(BADLEERZE  NAEEE
BIRFAR0.6 B TEETT1,459,854,014 (R AN~
7] @ A% - LA (E 120,000,000,000 %2 & U
B8 Ultra Matrix £ [@ 2 50 B 217D Btk
ERUE B 82 A FEE 4 A788,322,000
P TT © Ultra Matrix 58 B 3 & 1R 15 IR B2 3 K
XFEEBEMNS 2 ERERBMEMKL -

RULEERF - Ultra Matrix EE AT E B EE R
FEYEBRERETEE Bt EFRA
U B Ultra Matrix S E I B EE A HF - M
BREEEREE -

FHAFBRARRBERAE-_T—NE=H
Zt+=R - ZE-NmHFEA=ZA RN
FRATRBZRAERNRKEE -
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39. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued) 39. WEEEEREBRE®
For accounting purpose, the cost of acquisitions of approximately BEFENME WK A41,017,404,000
HK$1,017,404,000 (comprising cash, share consideration transferred BT (EEES FFEERMHABRISK
and transaction costs) have been allocated to the following identifiable R)EDBLE T 5B S & Ultra Matrix 52 B 7
assets and liabilities of Win Rich and the Ultra Matrix Group as at the WEHH A ZREEREBE WO :

date of acquisition as follows:

2014
—E—NEF
Ultra Matrix
Group
Ultra Matrix Win Rich Total
= =] et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#& T FET
Notes (Unaudited)
B 5E (RER)

Net asset acquired: R EERE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB MR 16 2,083 - 2,083
Intangible assets B EE 19 872,299 - 872,299
Prepayments, deposits and BAFIE  fTe Rk

other receivable H h fEURIE 111,245 441,589 552,834
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTAE R 1,820 933 2,753
Other payables and accruals Hofth & IR R =+ & (111,534) (11,810) (123,344)
Obligations under finance lease MEREETNEE - (289,221) (289,221)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Ut EE A] 34 Rl & = S B 42 58 875,913 141,491 1,017,404
Satisfied by: SEapIEE
Issuance of ordinary shares BT R 37(e) 788,322 - 788,322
Cash Re 87,591 141,491 229,082

875,913 141,491 1,017,404

Analysis of cash flows in respect of HRAWE ZRERE

the acquisitions is as follows: AL :
Cash and bank balances acquired  FrUtBEIR & RIRTT4E SR 1,820 933 2,753
Cash consideration paid RWBEMRESRE

for the acquisitions (87,591) (141,491) (229,082)
Net outflow of cash and cash AARBEEMARESRE

equivalents included in cash flows ~ ZIR& RIREEEY
used in investing activities DiaapEE: ] (85,771) (140,558) (226,329)
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40. DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. RIEEMBATIGZENER
Owing to the dilution of the Group’s effective equity interest in Magical AREBRFTHZEBERER-_Z—NF
Gains from 100% to 50% upon issuance of 100 new ordinary shares +ZA=Z+=HR—ZREAZEITI00&E
of Magical Gains to a subscriber on 23 December 2014, Magical e mAR% BR100% #5EE50% - 28
Gains Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group and became SERFARIEAAREEZNBAR - MK
joint ventures of the Group during the year (note 7). Accordingly, BAEBEzEERE(MET) - At - &8
Magical Gains Group were deconsolidated during the year ended 31 SERBE-T—NF+-A=1T—HIEF
December 2014, B IEERE AR -
An analysis of the net assets deconsolidated in respect of which is as UL IEGE AR ZEEFEI AT -
follows:
Notes HK$’'000
B 5E FAT
Assets/(liabilities) deconsolidated: TR LR A ABREE/(AfE) :
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ RE MR 16 56,833
Intangible assets EREE 19 815,696
Long-term deposit REES 6,798
Inventories ra 1,549
Other receivables HoAth jE Uk R IE 25,585
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEEFABRZZIBEE 43,388
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 50,599
Other payables Hth e 508 (94,015)
Amount due to a shareholder FET AR SR 5RIE (1,001,132)
Reclassification to interests in joint ventures from  BRMB AT Z R EFHESE
interests in subsidiaries RE & (94,699

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
of the deconsolidation of Magical Gains Group is as follows:

FRR LS EEERA ARZRE RS
EEMRLFEIITMOT :

HK$'000
FHET
Cash and bank balances deconsolidated and Fra& ibfra ABRIR € RIRTTEBR A K
the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BRARIEHBRARGEARZRE M
in respect of the deconsolidation of subsidiaries BEEBYRL F5E (50,599)
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A shareholders agreement dated 7 February 2014, entered into
between the Company, Landing Jeju Development Co., Ltd.
(“Landing Jeju”), and Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. (‘HBL”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Genting Singapore PLC, as subscriber), pursuant
to which the Company and HBL have conditionally agreed to pay
KRW32,469,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$235,000,000)
and KRW82,500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$598,000,000) respectively to the Landing Jeju for subscription of
its shares such that the Landing Jeju will be owned as to 50% by the
Company and 50% by HBL.

The completion of the shareholders agreement took place on 27
March 2014. Upon the said completion with the increase in the share
capital of the Landing Jeju, the Landing Jeju is owned as to 50% by
each of the Company and HBL, and has become a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, the financial results of which will continue
to be consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

Such dilution of shareholding of the Landing Jeju held by the
Company from 100% to 50% was constituted a deemed disposal of
the Group’s equity interest in Landing Jeju, and the difference of
approximately HK$7,253,000 between the fair value of the
consideration received from share subscription of the Landing Jeju
and 50% carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the
deemed disposal of was recognised directly in equity as other reserve
during the period ended 30 June 2014. Details of which were set out
in announcements of the Company dated 9 February 2014 and 27
March 2014.

—E-ME+ZA=1—H

BEARG - ESBEMNAZEKAAR((ESR
M 1) & Happy Bay Pte. Ltd. (THBL] * {4
8 A » A Genting Singapore PLC 7 f# &
BWBRAR)FAEIASHA-_T—ME_A
+tHZEE DS AR R EHBLEEERE
2 Bl TR BE 575 )1 S 1+ 32,469,000,000%2 B (8
& 7 #7235,000,0007% 7T ) & 82,500,000,000
B2 2 (FHE 1 #9598,000,000 78 7T ) LARRBE H
B - EARBRHBLE B D RIHA & SE
M 50% #E S

BREBZER -_ZT-—OF=A_++tB5%
B o B At 169 7 5 B K% BE R OB N AR 38 A
& - EREMNBARDQE R HBLE B #HE 50%
B YWKRARRZIEZENBRR B
M RERBENAEE 2 BEHRRPEE
N

AN B FTHS BE S 7 M AE M R 100% B =
50% * R ERIELEREERESEMNZ
R - BE—_T—NEA=+HIEH™
EREMNBRNDRBEMSREZ AT EELEY
BIEHERNEEFEZS50% RABE L 5
#97,253,000 7 7T B £ P 2= 1 3R LA (7
- ERFRBRENARRAA-_T—MF
ZANBRZZE-MF=A=-F+tHZR % -
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42,

43.

44,

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and factory premises
are negotiated for terms of two to three years. As at 31 December
2014, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

HGEMBmRME
—E-mE+=-A=+—8H

42.

EEMERIE
REEHDENERBENEZETROB
EAHME=F - R-2—WF+ A
=+—B AEE TIHHBEEBOER
SERERABEZHENT :

2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 49,613 11,607
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFERTF(RREEEMT) 17,268 17,915
66,881 29,622
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. EERH
As at 31 December 2014, the Group pledged its property, plant and RZZE-—NF+-A=+—0 FAEEEHK
equipment, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and properties HE R R A%530,382,000 8 L (ZF—=
under development of approximately HK$530,382,000 (2013: £ 26,711,000 7T ) + #915,494,000 % 7T
HK$26,711,000), approximately HK$15,494,000 (2013: (ZF — = F:16,122,000/ 7T ) &
HK$16,122,000), approximately HK$33,668,000 (2013: 33,668,0007% ;t ( — = — = £ : 37,008,000
HK$37,008,000) and Nil (2013: HK$513,141,000), respectively, to L) RE(ZT—=4 : 513,141,000 7T)
secure the Group’s borrowing facilities and finance lease payables ZWE - BEREE  BNHEEHRE BF
(notes 30 and 34). BERERTYE FRAASEEEMER
FERNREEE (30 k384) 2 #E1R -
COMMITMENTS 44, FEiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 42 B £ SCPfTRE 42 FHil A S AR ERIEIN - AEE
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end REREEIRE T 5 & ARRIE
of the reporting period:
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Contracted, but not provided for: EEEEES R
Property, plant and equipment WE  BENEE 289,587 3,615
Properties being developed REEERAMEHE
by the Group for sale A ES 366,300 484,984
Land use rights b A - 1,069,799
655,887 1,558,398
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

On 9 February 2014 and 21 February 2014, the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and a
supplemental agreement respectively with Ms. Xu for the
acquisition of the entire issued shares of Win Rich, which is
beneficially owned by Ms. Xu at the total consideration of
approximately HK$141,491,000. Win Rich was incorporated for
the purpose of entering into a purchase agreement and the
leasing agreements with respect to an aircraft. The relevant
resolution has been passed in a special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 March 2014 by way of poll. The
completion of such acquisition has taken place on 7 April 2014.
Details of which have been disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 9 February 2014, 21 February 2014 and 7
April 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 12 March
2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Landing Jeju was
granted a shareholder loan of approximately Singapore Dollar
(“SGD”) 97,529,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$614,557,000) from HBL. The shareholder loan charged
interest rate at 5% per annum. Approximately HK$22,001,000
of interest expense was capitalised into the property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2014.

6 M E IR R M
—F-mFE+=A=+—A

45. BAEE RS

@)

R-E—NF-_ANBR-_ZT—NF
—A=-+—H8  ARAREBLZLHH
AIVEBER @R E RAEE
LASARAB 49 141,491,000 7 TT U B 14 22
BRXBEAZBER D BITRND -
BETAR —RRETIEEREK
HEWZEMEMKT - BERZERE
R-ZZE—mWE=A=-+N\BEITZAK
ANEBEE IR E IR HIRE R R
FRBRB FRERBER-_ZT—TF
MA+HEK - BEEFBERAARH
HAE—NF-_ANH - —ZE—NX
FZAZT—BERZZ—MOFNAL
AZRAEURARRIBHEAE-Z—Y
FZA+-—HAZBEHAEE -

HE-_Z-—NFEF+_-_A=1+—HI*F
B ESEMNEHBLE TIREERL
97,529,000 %7 103 o ([ Frpns e ) (58
BN 4614,557,0007% 7T ) o IR &
REMESEFE - BHE-_T—NF
+ - B=+—-—BILtEE &
22,001,000 8 T2 FI BB BEY
¥ BEMEBIERER -
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired
Double Earn Group from Hong Han and details of which are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements and the
Company’s shareholders’ circular dated 24 March 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group was
granted a loan of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$123,273,000) from Anhui Landing Holding
Group Co., Ltd* (& B & & 5 ik & B & R 2 7)) (“Anhui
Landing”), a related company of the Group. The loan bore an
interest at the rate of 13% per annum. Approximately
HK$9,717,000 (2013: HK$3,228,000) of interest expense was
charged by Anhui Landing during the year. The loan and its
accrued interest have been fully settled during the year ended
31 December 2014.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management of the Company during the reporting period,
which is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends, is
as follows:

Short-term benefits

& & M B IR R M
—EF-mFE+=A=+—A

45. FEBEBARE S (@)

(©

BE-_T—=F+-A=+—HALF
B AEEREERBEEEE
TEERA RS B B ER M 539 KA A
BEfA-—T—=46=ZA-_tmWEZK
RIBK ©

B Z—=F+_-_A=+—HItF
B AEEEAEBZEHARTH
EorREEERAR ([ ZHES])
E®— % A% A R% 100,000,000 7T
(FREN4123,273,0007T) Z B °
EEEREMNEEIZE - FR - ©E
E RSB UWEFI B X 49,717,0007% T
TE =4 :3228000/87T) - HE
—E-ME+-_A=1t—HBItFE "
EREENERREENFIS -

NTREERAAREMTIEZEIERE
REBRBRERANZFHE - TR FHE
SERTEARREERTSESMEE -

2014 2013
—E—-mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Tz FET
43,444 7,837
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31 December 2014

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES

OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position and reserves of
the Company as at the reporting date are as follows:

HEMTBmRME
—Z-WE+=-A=+—8

46. KABIMBRRARR iR

REBRH  AEARBMBRRARRHRE

ZERIT

2014 2013
—ET-F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE RE&E 11,841 5,547
Due from a subsidiary FEUS BB A B F0E 624,808 =
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZI&E 1,319,460 1,084,503
Interests in joint ventures RE&EPE R 876,132 -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 2,832,241 1,090,050
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries NGRS 669,383 5,692
Deposits and prepayments HE SRR 248,047 6,432
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAEER 480,518 8,983
Total current assets MEEERE 1,397,948 21,107
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE R & E A R~ FR0E 6,473 4,405
Due to subsidiaries Rl NGIE R 120,269 372,432
Due to the ultimate holding company i ARp4 Sy UNEIF ] - 4,995
Other borrowings HibigE = 10,127
Total current liabilities mEIAERE 126,742 391,959
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE(BFE) FHE 1,271,206 (370,852
Net assets AESE 4,103,447 719,198
EQUITY Ex
Issued capital BEETER 186,963 94,443
Reserves (note) et (P EE) 3,916,484 624,755
Total equity b 4,103,447 719,198
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

FEMBHRRME
=F-mFE+=A=+—A

46. XATIMBRRAR R

Note: fHEE -
Convertible  Share-based
Share  Contributed  bond equity payment  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ARRES B2
RAEE AR EnmE it RitEE @it
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 $'000 HK$'000
MizE TEx TEx FiET TEx TEx
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=6-F—A 88,679 - - - (88,493) 186
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEFERZAFRLER
for the year - - - - (108,687) (108,687)
Issue of convertible bond B BERES - - 86,607 - - 86,607
Issue of new shares upon conversion HRBARREFSRITHRD
of the convertible bonds 37(b) 561,354 - (86,697) - - 474,657
Transfer of credit arising from BRARERZERER
the capital reduction in FEE 7 EREER
relation to capital organisation 37(a) - 171,902 - - - 171,902
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=t-BR
and 1 January 2014 —Z-mE-A-R 650,033 171,902 o o (197,180) 624,755
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEFERZAEFBLESE
for the year - - - - (77,313) (77,313)
Issue of ordinary shares by rights issue BRERFTEAR 37(c) 1,369,419 - - - - 1,369,419
Direct expenses in relation of rights issue BRRRz EZRY (14,374) - - - - (14,374)
Issue of ordinary shares by BRROBERTLER
share subscriptions 37() 1,236,300 - - - - 1,236,300
Issue of ordinary shares in relation to ERB AR BT Bk
acquisition of a subsidiary 37(e) 773,723 - - - - 773,723
Equity-settled share option arrangements R i & Z B IREL HE = o = 3,974 - 3,974
At 31 December 2014 R-E-mE+-A=1+-H 4,015,101 171,902 > 3,974 (274493) 3,916,484
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31 December 2014 —E-NE+=A=t+—H
47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 47. BEREIDZHMBIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEPRSERTFETEZREEQNT ¢

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014 —E—ME

Financial assets BB EE
2014 2013
—Z—MF —E—=F
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
EXRE BR &
PE W5k 18 JE W E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loan to joint ventures mEERERECER 876,132 -
Trade and other receivables FEU & 5 R IE Fe H A FE W R IE 427,229 134,849
Restricted cash 2R 6 & 10,658 -
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHE 1,655,667 265,956
2,969,686 400,805

Financial liabilities HERE
2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E—=F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
R bire:Xic
BRAEHE RAEHE
2 e s 2B AaE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Trade and other payables FEf B 5 5/ I8 R H A FE(S IR 386,153 117,551
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SERTRHEMES 89,676 97,222
Due to the ultimate holding company JE A B 1R YR A% N B FRIE - 370,009
Due to a related company JFES RAES A B IR = 128,273
Finance lease payables FENmERE 297,671 =
Due to a non-controlling interest FE - FETE AR M 2 BRI 598,826 =

1,372,326 708,055
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Management has assessed the fair value of cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to the ultimate
holding company and a related company approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments. The directors are responsible for determining the policies
and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and equity
balance. Debt balance consists of bank and other borrowings, loan
from government and amounts due to the ultimate holding company
and a related company. Equity balance consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-
going annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share repurchase as well as the issue of new debt.

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings, loan from government and amounts due to the
ultimate holding company and a related company.

—E—NE+=A=+—H

ERECDHERESIRTES  BRESK
AR EMBEWFOR - BN E 5508 M A E
NHE - FFERITREMEBE - BAKKRE
BRRREBARFAZ A FEE  EHE
HEHBEMERS  TE2HRREIAZES
REBREH -EXEEEEMBTARF
EBEFEZBREIERF

BXEEEE
AEMEBAER - WA LN BB
W ERE RSB BE(EERRSES
BERSFHENE DR - AR BE
RIS -

AEEZEARBRRERBRRESE
oo EBRERBRERTLEMES  BNE
FUA K e S AR PRI 2 B B RS 2RISR ©
RBEERBEARRAEEARGER(ES
BEBRTRARER)

ARBEEHBETFRIERNRER - EULIA
B TIEF  EFEEEARARERER
MmER - AEEREBEZT2ER - &
BIRE -~ BITHAD REBEIA D - PARELT
B FEHHEBE NGRS

AEEZFZ2HHBTARRERKE S HIER
HibEUKIE - e MIRITHER  BNES
FIBREMENRIE  RITREMEE - K
T & SR EA B AN B A4 AR 2 B Sk e 2 Bk
I8 o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 49. BiBEMEEREHERBEER®)

POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group does not have any written risk management policies and
guidelines. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings with
a floating interest rate. The Group policy is to manage its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The directors do not
expect there will be a significant interest rate adjustment in relation to
the Group’s bank borrowings, hence no sensitivity analysis is
prepared at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign current risk

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group’s sales and purchases that are
denominated in United States dollars (“US$”), which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s loss before tax and the Group’s equity.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s
loss after tax (and accumulated losses) in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

2014 —E2-F
If the RMB weakens against the US$ AR S E T2 EREE
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ HARBEETZERAE
2013 —E-=F
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MAREEE T2 EXREE
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ HARBEET 2 ERFAE

EXREBEE (@)
$E§HﬁﬁIEF$Z‘IEHA#ﬂWH

CHNERRR - EERE RRB)EREE $
E@Iﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬂ %i@ﬂ(ﬁ&?&u%l
Egkd MUEFHERERIERR Zﬁk'ﬁ'ﬁ’
Hpfaian s

T 2R
AREFAETSMNEEP AR T REARE
BLAZENEGFEZRITEEEMN - AKE
ZEREDRAECBEERIZSXRERZ)
AEEANEKAE - EERHAKBRITER
BIEELEANEXRHE  AHRBREDHR
I A BB E DA

SHE B
AREHERBEZETHEMBARINE
T(ERDFE  SAREAZINERR
TRAARMERRETER LIRS IEA AL
''''' BHMAEEMERERTE - AEERK
AIEE R AN EE LS 2 BURE

B SHT
TRITRBERRAEEARZERNARZ
SNES BE R (3R & TR T BE B B E BUR SR BIBR A
RER (R RBE) EXZBOZE -

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease)

RMB rate loss before tax in equity

ARMER BB ISR B
#hn,/ (D) #n,/ () #hn,/ (i)

% HK$’000 HK$’000

THEx THER

(5) 877 (877)

5 (877) 877

(5) 1,697 (1,697)

5 (1,697) 1,697
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49,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk by the Group which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to manage its credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are
only made to customers with good repayment history. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of individual debt on an on-
going basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

Liquidlity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigates the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

FEMBRRMEE
—E-NE+=-HA=+-—8

49, BHEEGEEBERBE &)

BEXxERER (@)

ERER
AEBRSFHREBTEEMERYHIE
RZERNEERR - HEARGEHBRRE
SR BEMERRVFEEZREEESL

REBEERR AEEEEREERE—4A
AR BEEBEEEER®E HEREEHENE
TRMEERR  UERERERRAHE
BZENEE - FREHEERENTERT
ZBEPHELT o WO AEBEFE R ERIE
R REEE - ARSI ARE S REIE
HRMZ R ERE R -

HRHFHRBERF ZRIT MAKEZ
nBEEZEERBRAR

B

SRERRBME R E - AEE BRI RS
RehkAcSFEVREEBR/RHZK
FoRAKHEERHESRAERSRE
a7
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

49. BFEEMGEREERBIR @)

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) BXEGER(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEE)IER B (5

TERAHBINAEH M BRBZHRT AL
EWE - ZRTDAMBRBEZRMERESR
BURAKEANRZ R AR HEENR

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the undiscounted cash flows of the
financial liabilities as well as the earliest date on which the Group can

be required to pay. Bl o
Total
On  Lessthan 1t0o3 3 months Over undiscounted
Demand 1 month months to 1 year 1year cash flow
AEBERE
REX LSMER 1Z3fA S@AZE1E BR1E RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THER THER TR THET
2014 —E-|mE
Trade and other payables B8 S 7A R EmEMNFE 305,233 = 84,381 = = 389,614
Interest-bearing bank and other St BRI R AMEE
borrowings 31,121 - - 67,301 - 98,422
Due to a non-controlling interest JE IR IR R 20A - - - - 749,130 749,130
Obligations under finance lease WEREBTER - - - 82,740 259,032 341,772
336,354 - 84,381 150,041 1,008,162 1,578,938
2013 —E2-Z§
Trade and other payables ERE SF0E R EMERFE - 08,337 30,138 - = 128,475
Interest-bearing bank and other AEBARENESE
borrowings - 10,266 23,347 66,592 - 100,205
Due to the ultimate holding Rt SRR AR
company 370,009 - - - - 370,009
Due to a related company JEfT R N A5 123,273 = = = = 123,273
493,282 108,603 53,485 66,592 - 721,962

AR A B mERM A2 - EEERA
LA BIRAE T EE  UBREAEEN
BERSREMR NI M5 A EBIFELL

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have adopted or plan to adopt certain measure in order to
improve the Group’s financial and cash flow positions and to maintain
the Group as a going concern.
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50. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 50. REHEEIE

(@)  Subsequently on 8 January 2015, as approved by the Board @ EHEER-_Z—RAFE—AN\B KEZ
and consented by each of the Grantees, the Company and the SHEVKEEEARARE A28 Kk
Grantees have agreed that the grant of Options to be cancelled ABEAREEZMBUHIKR HERE - B
in its entirety. No Grantee has exercised the said Options prior EUHE R - BT AR AR ITE Eat BERR
to such cancellation. E o

(o) On 15 December 2014, the Company as the purchaser, ) RZZE—ME+-_A+EHAB ' AQ7A
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Gangwon Sale (& & 7 ) B Jumbo Prize Limited
and Purchase Agreement”) with Jumbo Prize Limited ([Jumbo Prize ) ;] 32 B & & ([ 5T
(“Jumbo Prize”) pursuant to which Jumbo Prize had REBEWZE]) - Bt - Jumbo Prize §
conditionally agreed to sell and transfer, and the Company had EHRE L E REEm ARG G IEHG
conditionally agreed to acquire, among others, the entire issued A 2B ACHF 8 )Wealth Seed
share capital of Wealth Seed Group Limited (the “Target Group Limited ([ BEA T ) 2 2B
Company”) at the consideration of approximately BITIRA - KB %) &868,659,000 %
HK$868,659,000. The Target Company, through its indirect Lo BERARBRBEMENRBAR -
subsidiary, owns and operates casino business now carried RIR IR R A SR ER C IR R
under the trade name of Alpensia Casino at Holiday Inn Resort HEIFREFTEZHRAERBE
in Pyeongchang, Gangwon-do Province, South Korea pursuant (Holiday Inn Resort) # & & & & IR
to the casino license under the Tourism Promotion Act. A Alpensia Casino & & 5t 2 1§ % ¥ 7% ©
refundable deposit of HK$210,000,000 had been paid pursuant BRETIREE R B RERT
to the Gangwon Sale and Purchase Agreement. However, ©210,000,000% 7T « A - IRER
some of the conditions set out in the Gangwon Sale and R FTEE TR REEENSER R
Purchase Agreement had not been satisfied or waived and no TR TE I R AR g #k IE B HE Bt
extension of the long stop date had been agreed; hence, IREERZEBENR T —RF=
Gangwon Sale and Purchase Agreement lapsed on 28 February AZ+N\BX® - BEFIERERAT
2015 subsequently. Details of which have been disclosed in the HEBA—Z—NE+-_A+HABAE=
announcements of the Company dated 15 December 2014 T—RAF-A-++HHZRAERWE -
and 27 February 2015.

51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 51. EEMBAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 RZFE—NF+=_A=+—8 KRR E
are as follows: B AR ZEFBIT ¢

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation or issued share
establishment/ capital/paid up Attributable equity interest

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
iz BRTRAEE/ HEAARREZ
HEARER R/ EENY HREMER EERAER TRER
Directly Indirectly
B LiF

2014 2014

—g-n%

—g-mg

Upflow Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% - Provision of management services
MEER AT N Ordinary share REEERE
1T

Bl
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 51. EEMBAT @

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation or issued share
establishment/ capital/paid up Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
RIS BRTRAEE HAREREZ
WEAREH R/ EEMY HEEMER ERARES TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B %
2014 2014
—g-mE —g-mF
Smart Million Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% - Investment holding
RBRLEE/ Ordinary share RELRR
Bk e
Pine Fame Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
MEERAT B Ordinary share REER
18T
Ace Winner Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$100 100% - Investment holding
RBRLEE/ Ordinary share RELR
B 100%7T
China Opto Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
FENEREBRAT Ak Ordinary share REER
10,000%7T
LER
Jiangsu Wenrun Optoelectronic Co Ltd* PRC RMB135,000,000 - 69.44%  Design, manufacturing and sale of
(note i) H Paid-up registered LED and semi-conductor lighting
IHBBAEERAA (D) capital related products
AR135,000,000 7 RAt REHLED RY¥ B RAEHE
BRAMER Em
Jiangsu Wenrun Optoelectronic PRC RMB40,000,000 - 69.44%  Design, manufacturing and sale of
Technology Co Ltd* F Paid-up registered capital LED and semi-conductor lighting
IHEBELERNBBERAR AR 40,000,0007C related products
BRAMER RAt REHLED R4 EHRAEH
Em
Zhejiang Wenrun Optoelectronic Semi- PRC RMB2,000,000 - 69.44%  Design, manufacturing and sale of
conductor Technology Co Ltd* FE Paid-up registered capital LED and semi-conductor lighting
BIRETERRATIIEERAA AR 2,000,000 related products
HREMER RETREHLED RS ERAEHE
Em
Shanghai Yuj Electronic Limited” PRC RMB1,000,000 - 69.44%  Sale of LED and semi-conductor
LERBEFERLA f Paid-up registered capital lighting related products

AR 1,000,00070
BREMREA

HELED R E R RAAMAMER
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of Nominal value of

incorporation or issued share

establishment/ capital/paid up

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital
RIS BRTRAHEE/

KEARER R/ EERY HREMER
Lian Yun Gang Bo Yu Information PRC HK$780,000
Consultancy Services h Paid-up registered
Company Limited* (note iv) capital
EERREEEAARBERAA 780,000/ 7T
(HizEiv) HRAMER
Keenmount Limited BVI Us$1
BEREERAR RERZHES Ordinary share
B

Double Eam Holdings Limited BVI US$100
BEEREBAR HBREIHS Ordinary share
100%7T

Mass Spring (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
BEX(BB)ERARA &5 Ordinary share
10,000/7C

Yueyang Nanhu Meishu Properties Limited* PRC RMB270,000,000
(note iv) e Paid-up registered capital
EEEBEZEEERAR (M) AR 270,000,007
HRAMER

Landing Jeju Development Co., Limited South Korea KRW165,000,000,000
ESENEEGA et e Ordinary share
165,000,000,000 &

gl

Win Rich (note ii) BVI US$50,000
B8 (PsEii) RBRZEHS Ordinary share
50,000% 7T

EER

Landing Singapore Limited BVI US$100
(note i) (B &Eil) EBREAES Ordinary share
1003%7T

gl

Landing Singapore Dev. PTE Ltd. Singapore SGD100
(note i) (B i) T Ordinary share
100 ISR TT

il

HGEMBmRME
—E-mE+=-A=+—8H

51. FEMBAE @

Attributable equity interest

held by the Company Principal activities
HARAREZ
FEfh B AR TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE %
2014 2014
—E-[E —B-OF
- 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% - Investment holding
REER
100% - Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Property development
50% - Construction, management, operation
and rental of facilities for tourism,
commerce, accommodation and
recreation
B EE - EEREERE &
% ERRIRER T
100% - Aircraft
e
100% - Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Investment holding
REER
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51. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 51. EEMBAT @

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation or issued share
establishment/ capital/paid up Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
RIS BRTRAEE HAREREZ
HEARZE B EEY HREMER ERARES TEEH
Directly Indirectly
BE %

2014

—E-IE

2014
—2-mF

Gold Rise Management Limited (note iii) Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Inactive
S RERBR AR (T BB Ordinary share e
187
BB
Rainbow Source Developments Limited BVI US$100 100% - Motor vehicles
(note il KERZES Ordinary share B
WRERERAF (&) 100% T
Stepwide Developments Limited (note i)~ BVI Us$1 100% - Investment holding
B ERAR AR (i) KBRS Ordinary s;are REZR
1R
g il
Jumbo Step Limited (note iii) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
ERBR AR (i) b Ordinary share REER
187
Landing Korea Co., Ltd (note i) (Ff&Eii) ~ South Korea KRW7,355,240,000 - 100%  Establishment of training center
[ Ordinary share BATEE
7,355,240,000 5
g il
Sino Superior Limited (note i) (i ii) BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
KERZES Ordinary share REER
1%L
Gold Smart Finance Limited (note i Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Inactive
SEHBER AR (MEii) Bk Ordinary share TmEE
18T
LER
Empire Fame Limited (note iii) BVI US$1 100% - Tenancy agreements
SEERAA (M) KBRS Ordinary share HEHZ

15T
8k
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51.

52.

53.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

[0] The company is registered in form of sino-foreign equity joint venture.
(ii) The company was acquired by the Group during the year.

(iii) The company was incorporated during the year.

(iv) The company is registered in form of wholly foreign owned enterprise.

* For identification purposes only.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Contain comparative amounts have been reclassified to confirm to the
presentation of current year.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

This consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board on 27 March 2015.

FEMBRRMEE
—E-mE+=-A=+—8

51.

52.

33.

FEMBAT @)

BfaE:
i) ZARIARINE BB ER N M o
(ii) ZARNFENBARNEEBRE -

n

N

(i) Z A BN ERN ML

V) EAFAIEBESE XM -

el

A s
ETHBBTEEFAEAGAAFELZ2
FIF o

S SMBERR

FZEGEUBREAN_T—HF=A_++
REEESHERRENE -
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Major Properties AEERFFZEEME
held by the Group

Total gross
Site area floor area
attributable attributable
The to the to the
Group’s Group’s Group’s Expected
interest interest interest date of
Property (%) Location (°000 sq.m.) (°000 sq.m.) Usage completion
58 r5H
AEE ERERL EEEN
2R BBEE BEEER FFER
S (%) B (FEHXK) (F¥5X) B2 =R
Major properties under development
TERRPYE
The Tangxi Villas 100 Yueyang City, Hunan Province 156 115 Residential 20156-2017
FEAR HEaEGm £ —T-1%%
B o
Jeju Landing 50 Jeju Special Self-Governing 537 141 Residential 2017-2019
Panorama Park Province, South Korea
(Tentative name)
ENEERLRE BEBNER B AR £ S )

RE(EERR) b Sy o
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Financial Summary

Annual Report 2014

AT F5 =

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-TF ZT——F ZET-=F ZT-=F = u-
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHBT FHET FHET FET
(Restated)
(EH)
RESULTS E
Revenue Wzs 310,524 153,085 156,265 181,075 223,318
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF (EE) 63,586 60,772 (322,712) (142,197) (342,656)
Attributable to: FEAf -
Owners of the Company RATEB A 24,950 27,448 (303,948) (137,147) (293,677)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR A R 38,636 33,324 (18,764) (5,050) (48,979)
63,586 60,772 (322,712) (142,197) (342,656)
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-TF ZT——F ZT——F ZT—=F| = =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHBT FHET FHET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LERERE
Total assets BERE 827,546 1,206,602 492,870 1,572,258 5,893,237
Total liabilities afEaE (187,802) (387,866) (160,774) (730,752)  (1,382,151)
Shareholders’ funds BRERE S 639,744 818,736 332,096 841,506 4,511,086
Equity attributable to: FEAG AR
Owners of the Company ARARER A 435,907 483,078 254,018 768,484 3,911,132
Non-controlling interests FEI AR RE S 203,837 335,658 78,078 73,022 599,954
639,744 818,736 332,096 841,506 4,511,086
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